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Message from Managing Director 

 

 

 

At Jagan Lamps, we are not 

merely acting as a manufacture - 

we are trust of Auto Industries, 

faith of Consumers. 

 

 

It is interesting to mention 

in this context that during 

FY24-25, we achieved the 

revenue from operations, 

which stood at Rs. 4979.72 

Lacs.  
 

 

Dear Shareholders,  

It’s the time once again where I get to connect 

with our shareholders/stakeholders and 

connecting with shareholders/ stakeholders is 

something I always look forward to. I hope you 

are well.  

With a rich history dating back to 1993, we have 

come to this business, and completed its 

glorious 33 years. Jagan Lamps chasing of 

growth has always been driven by a strategic 
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focus on differentiation as well as relentless 

execution to deliver at scale and with quality.  

Our strategy is always focusing on the quality 

over the quantity. Amid of The Russia- Ukraine 

conflict, which caused supply chain disruptions 

worldwide, we work with many of our other 

customers or distributors present globally and 

this financial year also we are able to increase 

our revenue level as compared to the previous 

years. 

Several strategic initiatives have been 

undertaken to enhance our systems and 

processes. Our Company has proven its 

capability in design and development of different 

kinds of automobile lamps and this could be 

analyzed with raising number of 

customer/partners all over the world. 

Supported by a growing 

Economy, India’s 

automobile Components 

sector has 

Undergone significant  

Transformation. 
 

The business saw a steady growth, currently the 

total revenue decrease by 2.7% in this Financial 

Year 2024-25, clocking Rs. 5185.34 Lacs of total 

revenue.  

Total operating revenue of the Company is Rs. 

5117.23 Lacs. 

Profit before Tax (PBT) of the Company is Rs. 

392.75 Lacs. 

Profit after Tax (PAT) of the Company is Rs. 

293.68 Lacs. 

 

Our deepest appreciation goes to our dedicated 

employees, customers, and shareholders for 

their continued support. Your ongoing support is 

deeply valued and crucial to our continued 

success and growth. Together, we will navigate 

the challenges and opportunities to capitalize on 

those that lie ahead and realise our vision for a 

prosperous future. Look forward to connecting 

with you again. 

Warm Regards,  

 

Ashish Aggarwal 
Managing Director 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Registered Office 

Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, 

Dist.- Sonipat, 131028, Haryana 

Phone: +91-88-14805077 

e-mail: sales@jaganlamps.com  

web: www.jaganlamps.com  

 

Board of Directors 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal 

Director & Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Raghav Aggarwal 

Director 

Mr. Hemant Mangla 

Independent Director 

Mr. Saras Kumar 

Independent Director 

Ms. Shweta Nathani 

Independent Director 

 

Bankers 
Standard Chartered Bank 

Kotak Mahindra Bank 

 

Statutory Auditors 

M/s KASG & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

210, Safeway House, D Block Central Market, 

Prashant Vihar, New Delhi- 110085 

e-mail: vipin@kasgca.com 

 

Committees 

Audit Committee 

Mr. Saras Kumar  -  Chairman 

Ms. Shweta Nathani  -  Member 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal  -  Member 
 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

Mr. Hemant Mangla  -  Chairman 

Ms. Shweta Nathani  -  Member 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal  -  Member 

 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Mr. Saras Kumar  -  Chairman 

Ms. Shweta Nathani  -  Member 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal  -  Member 
 

Secretarial Auditors 

M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

304, 6A/1, Ganga Chamber,W.E.A.,  

Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110005 

e-mail: mhkgupta18@gmail.com 

 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

MAS Services Limited 

T-34 IInd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase II, 

New Delhi 110020 

Tel: 011-011-26387281-7283, Fax: 011-26387384 

Email: investor@masserv.com 
 

Key Managerial Person 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal -  Managing Director 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal -  Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Pratyus Kumar -  Company Secretary 

Stock Exchanges  

BSE Ltd.,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

Plant Location 

Unit I  : Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, Dist.- Sonipat, 131028, Haryana 

Unit II : Plot No. 19 And 67, NSEZ Noida Gautam Budh Nagar, 201301, Uttar Pradesh 
  

mailto:sales@jaganlamps.com
http://www.jaganlamps.com/
mailto:vipin@kasgca.com
mailto:mhkgupta18@gmail.com
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AGM Notice 

NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Members of JAGAN LAMPS 

LIMITED will be held on Monday, 29th day of September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M IST at registered 

office of the Company situated at Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli-131028, District-Sonipat, Haryana, to 

transact the following business(s):- 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements: 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company prepared as per 

Indian Accounting Standard for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. Appointment of Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal (DIN: 07887630) as a Director liable to retire by 

rotation: 

      To appoint Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal (DIN: 07887630), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 

herself for re-appointment as Director. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To appoint M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s), enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for 

the time being in force), M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries be and are 
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hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years beginning 

from FY 2025-26.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company, be and are 

hereby authorized to revise/ alter/ modify/ amend the terms and conditions and/ or remuneration, 

from time to time, as may be mutually agreed with the Auditors, during the tenure of their 

appointment.” 

 

4. To appoint Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) as an Non-Executive & Independent 

Director in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015: 

 

In this regard, it is proposed to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660), who was appointed by the Board of 

Directors as an Additional Independent Director of the Company effective August 29, 2025 and who 

holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a 

Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 

Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the 

Company, be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act and 

applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), as amended from time to time Mr. 

Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660), who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 

149(6) of the Act and who has submitted a declaration to that effect, be and is hereby appointed as 

an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 (five) years.” 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all 

such actions as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution, including filing of necessary 

statutory forms/applications with Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, as may be 

required from time to time.” 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: September 05, 2025 

Place: Kundli, Haryana 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Jagan Lamps Ltd. 

  

     Sd/- 

Hardik Gujar 

M. No. A77697 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

 

NOTES: 

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) relating to the 

Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 

aggregate not more than 10 percent of paid-up share capital of the Company. However, a member 

holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person 

as proxy provided that such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or member. A Proxy 

Form is annexed to this notice.  

3. If a Proxy is appointed for more than fifty Members, he/she shall choose any fifty Members and 

confirm the same to the Company before the commencement of period specified for inspection of 

proxy lodged. In case the Proxy fails to do so, the Company shall consider only the first fifty proxies 

received as valid.  

4. The form of proxy in order to be effective shall be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. During the 

period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending 

with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any 
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time during the business hours of the Company, provided not less than 3 days’ written notice is given 

to the Company. 

5. An instrument of Proxy duly filled, stamped and signed is valid only for this Annual General Meeting 

including any adjournment thereof. 

6. Pursuant to Rule 22(5) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Board 

of Directors of your Company has appointed M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates (Membership No. FCS 

10703, CP No. 15013), Practicing Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and 

remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Company has opted to provide 

“electronic voting system” for all those members who are present at the AGM and have not cast their 

votes by remote e-voting facility. After the conclusion of voting at the AGM, the Scrutinizers will 

submit a report to the Chairman of the Company or any other person authorized by the Chairman, 

after taking into account votes cast at the AGM as well as through remote e-voting in accordance 

with provisions of Rule 20 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended. 

The consolidated results in respect of voting along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be sent to the 

Stock Exchange and will also be uploaded on website of the Company and NSDL. 

7. Corporate/Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send 

scanned copy of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its 

representative to attend AGM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 

Resolution/Authorization be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 

mhkgupta18@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in & cs@jaganlamps.com to attend 

and vote on their behalf at the meeting, pursuant to section 113 of the Act. 

8. Members/Proxies/Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slip, annexed herewith, for 

attending the meeting, duly completed and signed mentioning therein details of their DP ID and 

Client ID/Folio No. 

9. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 

names will be entitled to vote. 

10. The relevant documents referred to in the Notice are available for inspection by the members at the 

Registered Office of the Company during business hours on any working day (i.e. except Saturdays, 

Sundays & Public Holidays) between 10.00 A.M. IST to 5.00 P.M. IST up to the date of the Meeting. 

 

mailto:mhkgupta18@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@jaganlamps.com
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11. Appeal to Shareholders 

Pursuant to SEBI notification dated January 24, 2022 read with SEBI circular dated January 25, 2022, 

transfer of shares in physical mode and transmission or transposition of securities held in physical or 

dematerialised form shall be effected only in dematerialised form. Accordingly, the Company/ RTA 

has stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of transfer, transmission, transposition, sub-division, 

consolidation, renewal /exchange of share certificate or issuance of duplicate share certificates, for 

shares held in physical form. Members are requested to convert the physical holding to demat 

through DP and may contact the Company for any assistance in this regard. 

REGISTRATION OF NOMINATION AND BANK MANDATE  

Registration of nomination makes easy for dependents to access your investments and set out the 

proportion of your benefits to the nominees. Registration and/ or updation of bank mandate ensures 

the receipt of dividend, if any, and/ or any other consideration timely, faster and easier and more 

important avoids fraudulent encashment of warrants. Members are requested to submit their bank 

registration documents i.e. request letter, cancelled cheque and self- attested PAN card & address 

proof with the Company and/ or DP. 

Members of the Company holding shares in physical mode are hereby notified that SEBI has 

mandated that all the folios have to be KYC compliant and accordingly, asked the shareholders to 

furnish their PAN, contact details and nomination to the RTAs. The Members are also required to 

register their postal address with PIN and are encouraged to register their email-ids. 

Further, relevant FAQs published by SEBI on its website can be viewed at the following link: 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/jan-2024/1704433843359.pdf. 

12. Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested to register their e-mail 

address with Depository Participant/ Registrar and Transfer Agents for receiving all the 

communications including Annual Reports, Notices, etc. in electronic mode. 

13. Rule 3 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) prescribes that 

Register of Members should include details pertaining to e-mail, PAN/CIN, UID, Occupation, Status 

and Nationality. We request all the Members of the Company to update the said details with their 

respective depository participants in case of shares held in electronic form and with the Company’s 

Registrar and Transfer Agents in the case of physical holding. 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/jan-2024/1704433843359.pdf
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14. Shareholders who hold shares in physical form may note that SEBI has made it mandatory for the 

persons holding securities in physical form to furnish PAN, email, postal address, mobile number, 

signature, bank account details and nomination details. Relevant details and forms prescribed by 

SEBI in this regard are available on the website of the Company and RTA and can also request to 

RTA at investor@masserv.com. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit 

their aforesaid details, if not already furnished, to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) viz. 

Mas Services Limited. 

15. Book Closure: The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 

closed from Tuesday, September 23, 2025 to Monday, September 29, 2025 for the purpose of annual 

closure of Books.  

16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Persons and their shareholding maintained under 

section 170 of the Act and Register of Contract maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 

and relevant documents referred in the Notice will be available for inspection without any fee from 

the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM i.e. September 29, 2025. 

17. Route Map: Since this AGM is held physically, Route Map showing the location of and directions to 

reach the venue of the 33rd AGM is attached, pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings. 

18. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to 

exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) by electronic means and the businesses may be transacted through e-voting services. The 

facility of casting votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than 

the venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) would be provided by NSDL. 

19. Details as required in Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial 

Standrad-2 on “General Meeting” issued by the ICSI in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ 

re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting are enclosed as Annexure-1 with this 

Notice. 

20. The notice of the Annual General Meeting along with Annual Report 2024-25 will be sent to those 

members/ beneficial owners whose name appear in the register of Members/ list of beneficiaries 

received from the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent as on 22.09.2025 as per the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013. Shareholders are requested to update their Email ID’s with their depository 

mailto:investor@masserv.com
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participants which will be used for the purpose of sending the official communications through Email. 

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes the member of the company after 

dispatch of the Annual Report and holding shares as on the cut-off date (i.e. 22.09.2025), may 

contact to Mas Services Limited (RTAs) or email to cs@jaganlamps.com and obtain copy of the 

Annual Report. 

21. No Gift(s) shall be distributed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

22. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, transfer of shares in physical 

mode and transmission or transposition of securities held in physical or dematerialised form shall be 

effected only in dematerialised form. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical 

shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are 

requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the 

Company Secretary or Mas Services Limited, Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) 

at investor@masserv.com & Tel. No. 011 26387281/82/83) for assistance in this regard. 

23. Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the same with 

their Depository Participants (“DP”) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with 

the Company/RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

24. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail 

address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 

power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in electronic form and to the 

Company/RTA if the shares are held by them in physical form. 

25. For receiving all future correspondence (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically –  

In case you have not registered your email ID with the Company/ Depositary, please follow below 

instructions to register your email ID for obtaining Annual Report for FY 2024-25 and login details for 

e-voting. 

Physical 

Holding 

Send a signed request letter to MAS Services Limited, Registrar and Transfer 

Agents (RTA) of the Company, at info@masserv.com or investor@masserv.com 

providing Folio Number, Name of the Shareholder, scanned copy of the Share 

Certificate (Front and Back), PAN (Self attested scanned copy), AADHAR (Self 

attested scanned copy) with subject line (Register E-mail ID Folio No (Mention 

mailto:cs@jaganlamps.com
mailto:investor@masserv.com
mailto:info@masserv.com
mailto:investor@masserv.com
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Folio No) of Jagan Lamps Limited. 

Demat 

Holding 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address 

as per the process advised by DP. 

 

26. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 

securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the 

PAN, if not already furnished, to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 

demat accounts. 

27. In compliance with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 

2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered 

with the Company / Depositories. Further, Notice of the AGM & Annual report is being sent through 

physically letter specifying the web link along with the extract path to those members who have not 

registered their e-mail addresses and mobile nos. and in consequence could not be served the Notice 

of the AGM and Annual Report may temporarily get themselves registered with RTA by emailing for 

obtaining the same. Members are requested to support our commitment to environmental protection 

by choosing to receive the Company’s communications through e-mail going forward.  

28. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.jaganlamps.comm, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.comm and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

29. In case a person has become a member of the Company after dispatch of Notice of AGM but on or 

before the cut-off date for e-voting i.e. Monday, September 22, 2025, such person may obtain the 

User ID and Password from RTA by e-mail request on info@masserv.com or investor@masserv.com 

30. With a view to helping us serve the members better, members who hold shares in identical names 

and in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Company to 

consolidate their holdings in one folio. 

31. Members who wish to obtain any information on the Company or view the financial statements for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2025 send their queries at cs@jaganlamps.com at least 7 (Seven) 

days before the date of AGM.  

32. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders of 

the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him / them shall vest in the 

http://www.jaganlamps.comm/
http://www.bseindia.comm/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:info@masserv.com
mailto:investor@masserv.com
mailto:cs@jaganlamps.com
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event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the requisite 

nomination form. 

33. In terms of SEBI Circular dated 09/12/2020, the depository shall send SMS/email alerts regarding the 

details of the upcoming AGM to the demat holders at least 2 days prior to the date of 

commencement of e-voting. Hence members are requested to update the mobile no. / email ID with 

their respective depository participants. 

34. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 

securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit 

their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat account. 

Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/Registrar. 

35. In accordance with SEBI LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) 

Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 30/11/2018 any request 

for physical transfer of shares shall not be processed w.e.f. April 01,2019. 

36. Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 

dated 25th  January 2022, the following requests received by the Company in physical form will be 

processed and the shares will be issued in dematerialization form only:- 

i. Issue of duplicate share certificate  

ii. Claim from unclaimed suspense account  

iii. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate  

iv. Endorsement  

v. Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate  

vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios  

vii. Transmission  

viii. Transposition  

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is 

hosted on the website of the company at www.jaganlamps.com as well as on the website of MAS 

Services Ltd at www.masserv.com, Registrar and share transfer agent (RTA) of the Company. The 

aforementioned form shall be furnished in hard copy form.  

 

Note: Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their 

holdings at the earliest. 

http://www.jaganlamps.com/
http://www.masserv.com/
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37. SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_ IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and 

SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), 

has established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resolution of disputes 

arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting the 

option to resolve their grievances with the RTA/ Company directly and through existing SCORES 

platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal 

(https://smartodr.in/login). 

38. Instructions for e-voting is as follows: 

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for the 

purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI), the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to exercise votes on the items of 

business given in the Notice of 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) through electronic voting system, 

to members holding shares as on Monday, September 22, 2025 (end of day), being the cut-off date 

fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote e-voting process, 

through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at the AGM. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING IS AS UNDER:- 

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Sunday, September 28, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cutoff date) i.e. September 22, 2025, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 22, 2025. 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below:  

STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM 

 

A. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, Regulation 44 

https://smartodr.in/login
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of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, 

in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. If the users are already registered for NSDL IDeASe-Services 

facilitymay follow the following procedure: 

 

i. Type in the browser / Click on the following e-Services link: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii. Click on the button “Beneficial Owner” available for login under 

‘IDeAS’ section.  

iii. A new page will open. Enter your User ID and Password for 

accessing IDeAS.  

iv. On successful authentication, you will enter your IDeAS service login. 

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under Value Added Services on the 

panel available on the left hand side.  

v. Click on the e-Voting link available against Company name or select 

e-Voting service provider “NSDL” and you will be re-directed to the 

e-Voting page of NSDL to cast your vote without any further 

authentication. 

 

If the user is not registered for NSDL IDeAS e-Services may 

follow the following procedure: 

i. To register, type in the browser / Click on the following link: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii. Select option “Register Online for IDeAS” available on the left hand 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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side of the page.  

iii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP ID, Client ID and 

Mobile Number etc.  

iv. After successful registration, please follow steps given under Sr. No. 

1 above to cast your vote. 

 

2. Users may directly access the e-Voting module of NSDL as per 

the following procedure: 

i. Type in the browser/Click on the following link: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com 

ii. Click on the button “Login” available under “Shareholder/ Member” 

section.  

iii. On the login page, enter User ID (that is, 16-character demat 

account number held with NSDL, starting with IN), Login Type, that 

is, through typing Password (in case you are registered on NSDL’s e-

voting platform)/ through generation of OTP (in case your 

mobile/email address is registered in your demat account) and 

Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

iv. On successful authentication, you will enter the e-Voting module of 

NSDL. Click on “Active E-voting Cycles / VC or OAVMs” option under 

e-Voting. Click on the e-Voting link available against Company name 

or select e-Voting service provider “NSDL” and you will be redirected 

to the e-Voting page of “NSDL” to cast your vote without any further 

authentication. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

CDSL 

 

1. Users already registered for Easi / Easiest facility of CDSL may 

follow the following procedure: 

i. Type in the browser / Click on any of the following links 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasinew/home/login/ or 

https://www.cdslindia.comand click on New System Myeasi / Login 

to My Easi option under Quick Login.  

ii. Enter your User ID and Password for accessing Easi / Easiest.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.cdslindia.com/
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iii. You will see Company name on the next screen.  

iv. Click on the e-Voting link available against Company name or select 

e-Voting service provider “NSDL” and you will be re-directed to the 

e-Voting page of NSDL to cast your vote without any further 

authentication.  

 

Users not registered for Easi/Easiest facility of CDSL may follow 

the following procedure:  

i. To register, type in the browser / Click on the following link: 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasinew/Registration/EasiRegistration 

ii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP ID Client ID (BO ID), 

etc.  

iii. After successful registration, please follow steps given under Sr. No. 

1 above to cast your vote. 

 

2. Users may directly access the e-Voting module of CDSL as per 

the following procedure: 

i. Type in the browser / Click on the following links: 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin 

ii. Provide Demat Account Number and PAN  

iii. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 

E-mail as recorded in the Demat Account.  

iv. On successful authentication, you will enter the e-voting module of 

CDSL. Click on the e-Voting link available against Company name or 

select e-Voting service provider “NSDL” and you will be re-directed 

to the e-Voting page of NSDL. 

 

Individual Members 

holding shares in 

Demat mode - want 

to login through the 

Website of 

Depository 

 

Individual Members holding shares in Demat mode - Procedure to 

login through their demat accounts / Website of Depository 

Participant: 

i. Individual Members holding shares of the Company in Demat mode 

can access e-Voting facility provided by the Company using login 

credentials of their demat accounts (online accounts) through their 

demat accounts / websites of Depository Participants registered with 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasinew/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Participant NSDL/CDSL.  

i. An option for “e-Voting” will be available once they have successfully 

logged-in through their respective logins.  

ii. Click on the option “e-Voting” and they will be redirected to e-Voting 

modules of NSDL/ CDSL (as may be applicable). Click on the e-

Voting link available against Company name or select e-Voting 

service provider “NSDL” and you will be redirected to the e-Voting 

page of NSDL to cast your vote without any further authentication. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll 

free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 or 

022- 23058542-43 

 

B. Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:// 

www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/ OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID. For 

example- if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID. For example- if your Beneficiary ID 

is 12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 

the company. For example- if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 

need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 

last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. 

The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

 ii)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/ Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Click on “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.inmentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 

name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLY ON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM 

A. How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

and casting your vote during the General Meeting. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page.  

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

B. General Guidelines for shareholders:  

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to mhkgupta18@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or to our RTA at info@masserv.com. 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 

set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please send a signed request letter with Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy) by email to info@masserv.com or investor@masserv.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please update your email ID with your depository and 

provide DPID -CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, updated client master to 

info@masserv.com or investor@masserv.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 

method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

mailto:mhkgupta18@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:info@masserv.com
mailto:info@masserv.com
mailto:investor@masserv.com
mailto:info@masserv.com
mailto:cs@jaganlamps.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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4. In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, on e-Voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 

demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

General Instructions for remote e-voting:  

 

Commencement of remote e-voting Friday, September 26, 2025 (09:00 A.M.)  

End of remote e-voting Sunday, September 28, 2025 (05:00 P.M.) 

 

During this period, only those persons whose names appears in the Register of Members or in the 

Register of beneficial owners maintained by the Depositories, as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 

September 22, 2025, shall be entitled to cast their vote through remote e-voting. The remote e-voting 

facility shall be forthwith disabled by NSDL after expiry of the said period. 

 

Members are requested to note the following contact details for addressing e-voting related grievances:  

 

Mr. N C Pall,  

MAS Services Limited 

T-34 IInd Floor Okhla Industrial Area,  

Phase II New Delhi 110020 

Tell No.: 011-26387281,7282,7283  

Email: investor@masserv.com 

 

 

   Registered Office: 

Jagan Lamps Limited 

Narela Piao Manihari Road 

District-Sonipat, Kundli-131028 

Haryana, India 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Jagan Lamps Ltd. 

     Sd/- 

Hardik Gujar 

Company Secretary 

 

Kundli, September 05, 2025 

 

mailto:investor@masserv.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT  

 

(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

The following explanatory statement sets out material facts relating to the special business 

offset out in the accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 

Item No. 3 

In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024, a listed entity shall appoint or reappoint Secretarial Auditor with 

the approval of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.  

Accordingly, in terms of the aforesaid requirement and subject to the approval of the Shareholders, the 

Board of Directors of the Company upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee approved the 

appointment of M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial 

Auditors of the Company for one term of 5 (Five) years beginning from FY 2025-26, at a remuneration of 

Rs. 27,500/- (Rupees Twenty Seven Thousand Five Hundred Only) in respect of Secretarial Audit. The 

remuneration for the subsequent financial years during the tenure of their appointment, shall be decided 

by the Audit Committee / Board.  

M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates (MGA), a Peer Reviewed Firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, is an 

advisory and consulting firm having Pan India network with specialization in Secretarial Compliances. 

MGA has a dedicated team of company secretaries and they offer services across corporate laws, SEBI 

regulations, FEMA compliances and allied services. The proposed fee is based on the knowledge, 

expertise, industry experience and the time and efforts required to be put in by the Secretarial Auditors 

and based on after mutual negotiation. 

The Company has received consent and eligibility letter from the proposed auditor to act as the 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.  
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Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at 

Item No. 3 of this Notice for appointment of M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates as Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company for a period of 5 (Five) years.  

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the 

shareholders. 

Item No. 4 

Your Board, on recommendation by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 

29.08.2025 has appointed Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) as an Additional Independent Director 

on the Board of Company to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting of the Company and 

therefore, her office is liable to be vacated at this Annual General Meeting. 

Your Board recommends appointment of Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) as an Independent 

Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years, w.e.f. August 29, 2025 and he is not liable to 

retire by rotation. 

Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660)has submitted a declaration to the Company to the effect that he 

meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the 

opinion of the Board, Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) fulfils the conditions specified in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under for appointment as Non-Executive Independent 

Director and he is independent of the management. Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660)  has 

submitted, a declaration in prescribed Form DIR-8 to the effect that he is not disqualified from being 

appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent to act as Director in 

prescribed Form DIR-2 and disclosure of interest in prescribed Form MBP-1. 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act read with Schedule IV of the Act, the 

appointment of Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660)  as Non-Executive and Independent Director is now 

being placed before the Members for their approval. The terms and conditions of appointment of the 

above Director shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company 

during normal business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday. Brief resume and other details of 

the Independent Director whose appointment is proposed are provided in the annexure to the 

Explanatory Statement attached herewith as Annexure - 1. 
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Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) is deemed to be interested in the resolution set out respectively at 

Item No. 4 of this Notice with regard to its respective appointment. Except Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 

11279660), none of the Director(s) and/or Key Managerial Personnel(s) and their relative(s) is either 

directly or indirectly concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution. Your 

Board recommends the said resolution, as Special Resolution, for your approval. 

 

 

Registered Office 

Jagan Lamps Limited 

Narela Piao Manihari Road 

District-Sonipat, Kundli-131028 

Haryana, India 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Jagan Lamps Ltd. 

  

     Sd/- 

Hardik Gujar 

Company Secretary 

Kundli, September 05, 2025 
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Annexure-1  

Details of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the  

33rd Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard - II issued by  

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India) 

 

S.N Particulars Details of Director 

A.  Name and Nationality of the Director Ms. Rekha Aggarwal, Indian 

B.  Qualification, Experience & Age i.e Brief 

Profile 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal is commerce graduate and 

overall experience of more than 14 years in 

areas of Financial Planning & Management, 

Accounts, Taxation and internal audit etc. Ms. 

Rekha Aggarwal is 49 year old. 

C.  Terms & Conditions of appointment and re-

appointment 

Re-appointment as a Director liable to retire by 

rotation 

D.  Last Drawn remuneration detail along with 

remuneration sought to be paid 

No salary was previously drawn except 

remuneration as CFO. 

E.  List of outside directorship held excluding 

alternate directorship & List of companies 

(including Listed company) from which the 

person has resigned in the past 3 years. 

1 Jagan Automotives Pvt. Ltd. 

2. Anvi Buildmart Pvt. Ltd. 

F.  Date of First appointment on the Board 29.09.2017 

G.  Shareholding in the Company as on 

31.03.2025 

5,13,872 

H.  Relationship with other Directors/KMP of the 

Company 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal is Husband and Mr. 

Raghav Aggarwal is son of Ms. Rekha Aggarwal 

I.  Membership / Chairmanship of committees of 

other Board as on March, 2025 

NA 

J.  No. of Meetings of the Board attended during Seven 
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the financial year 2024-25 

K.  In case of independent directors, the skills 

and capabilities required for the role and the 

manner in which the proposed person meets 

such requirements. 

NA 

 

S.N Particulars Details of Director 

A.  Name and Nationality of the Director Mr. Ashwani Mangla, NRI (Australia) 

B.  Qualification, Experience & Age i.e Brief 

Profile 

Mr. Ashwani Mangla is B. Tech in Chemical 

Engineering and has vast experience of over 24 

Years in International Trade and Marketing. Mr. 

Ashwani Mangla is 52 years old. 

C.  Terms & Conditions of appointment and re-

appointment 

Appointment as an Independent Director for 

five Years. 

D.  Last Drawn remuneration detail along with 

remuneration sought to be paid 

As a Non-Executive Director, he is entitled to 

sitting fees for attending meetings of the 

Board/Committee and Commission on Profits as 

may be approved by the board/shareholders 

from time-to–time within the limits set out in 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

E.  List of outside directorship held excluding 

alternate directorship & List of companies 

(including Listed company) from which the 

person has resigned in the past 3 years. 

NIL 

F.  Date of First appointment on the Board 05.09.2025 

G.  Shareholding in the Company as on 

31.03.2025 

NIL 

H.  Relationship with other Directors/KMP of the 

Company 

NIL 

I.  Membership / Chairmanship of committees of NA 
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other Board as on March, 2025 

J.  No. of Meetings of the Board attended during 

the financial year 2024-25 

Not Applicable 

K.  In case of independent directors, the skills 

and capabilities required for the role and the 

manner in which the proposed person meets 

such requirements. 

Mr. Ashwani Mangla has vast experience of 

over 24 Years in International Trade and 

Marketing. 
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ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF AGM 
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DIRECTORS’REPORT 
 

Dear Members, 

 

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 33rd Annual Report of the Company on the 

business and operations of the Company, along with standalone audited financial statements for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025 and Auditors Report thereon. 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR 31.03.2025       

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures are given 

hereunder- 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

      Year ended on 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 4,979.72 5,117.23 

Other Income 58.65 68.11 

Total Income 5,038.38 5,185.34 

Total Expenses 4,662.79 4,792.59 

Profit/Loss before Tax 375.59 392.75 

Tax Expenses 91.87 99.07 

Profit/Loss after Tax 283.72 293.68 

EPS 3.89 4.02 

 

The above figures are extracted from the audited standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, 

as amended, and in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”). 

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS/PERFORMANCE AND MATERIAL CHANGES AND 

COMMITMENTS 

 

The revenue from the operation of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 was Rs. 4,979.72/- lakh, 

decreased by 2.7% (due to Geo International Politics) as compared to the previous financial year’s revenue of 

Rs. 5,117.23 lakh. Whereas the Company has booked the profit after tax (“PAT”) for financial year 2024-25 of 

Rs. 283.72 lakh as compared to profit of Rs. 293.68 lakh in the previous financial year.  

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of this report. 
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3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

An amount of Rs. 283.72 Lacs has been transferred to General Reserve for financial year ended on 31st March, 

2025. 

4. DIVIDEND 

During the financial year under review, your directors have not recommended any dividend to the shareholders 

of the Company. The Company has transferred the entire amount of profit for accumulation and for value 

addition of the stakeholder’s wealth.  

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There was no change in nature of business of Company during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

6. DETAIL OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

During the year under review, the Company does not have any subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate 

Company. 

7. SHARE CAPITAL 

There was no change in Share Capital of Company during the year. The Company has not issued any shares  

by way of public offer, right issue, bonus issue during the period ended in 31st March, 2025 and the Company 

does not have any stock options scheme at present or in past. The Company has also not issued any shares 

with differential voting rights or sweat equity during the said period. 

Hence, the Paid up share capital of the Company stands at Rs. 7,29,52,330 (Rupees Seven Crore Twenty Nine 

Lacs Fifty Two Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Only) and authorized share capital of the Company stands at 

Rs. 9,00,00,000 (Rupees Nine Crores Only) on the MCA record. 

8. FIXED DEPOSIT / PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public within the preview of Section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) during the year under review. 

There is no unclaimed or unpaid deposit lying with the Company as on March 31, 2025. 

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of a combination of executive and non-executive Directors 

with woman Directors. The 50% of the board members are the “non-executive Independent Directors”. 

a) Retirement by Rotation: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and in accordance with the 

Article of Association of the Company, Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal, Non- Executive Director of the Company 

(DIN: 07887630) is liable to retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
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Company and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, after considering that Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal is not 

disqualified under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 which restrict him from appointment, hence, 

recommended her re-appointment to shareholders for their approval. The detailed profile of Mrs. Rekha 

Aggarwal (DIN: 07887630) along with additional information required under Regulation 36(3) of Listing 

Regulations and Secretarial Standard on general meetings is provided separately by way of Annexure to 

the Notice convening the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 

b) Appointment of Directors: 

During the year under review, there is no such event of appointment of Director except the change of 

designation of Mr. Raghav Aggarwal as Executive Director. 

c) Key Managerial Personnel: 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) of the Act, read with the Rules 

framed there under are as on 31st March, 2025 - 

S. No. Name Designation 

1. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal Chairman & Managing Director 

2. Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Chief Financial Officer 

3. Mr. Pratyus Kumar* Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 

*Mr. Pratyus Kumar has been ceased from his office of Company Secretary and Compliance officer due to his 

resignation vide his letter dated 23.04.2025 which was effective from 30.05.2025 as confirmed by the 

Company. 

In the opinion of the Board, all our Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and hold 

high standards of integrity. 

10. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

The Company had already constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee as required under Sub-

Section (1) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Hemant Mangla (Independent 

Director) Chairman of the Committee, Mrs. Shweta Nathani (Independent Director) and Ms. Rekha Aggarwal 

(Non-Executive Director), members of the Committee.  

The Company has also formulated a Policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for 

determining qualifications, independence of a director and other matters provided under Section 178 (3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the same is available on the website of the Company at - 
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https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015

/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20of%20appointment%20of%20Independent%20Director.pdf  

 

11. BOARD EVALUATION 

In terms of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, there is requirement of formal evaluation by 

the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors. The Board of Directors 

has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors 

pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the 

basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information 

and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from 

the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of 

committee meetings, etc. The Board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the 

performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual 

director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 

constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the key 

aspects of his role. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of 

the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of 

executive directors and non-executive directors. The same was discussed in the Board meeting that followed 

the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its committees and 

individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the 

entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 

12. DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, that they meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have enrolled 

themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of 

independence as specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and are independent of the management. 

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the 

Company. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20of%20appointment%20of%20Independent%20Director.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20of%20appointment%20of%20Independent%20Director.pdf
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During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 

transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them, if 

any, for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/ Committees of the Board. 

13. RELATION BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER –SEAS PER SECTION 2(77) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 

2013 

Director Inter–se Relationship Between Directors 

Directors Relationship 

 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal 

Ms. Rekha Aggarwal Wife 

Mr. Raghav Aggarwal Son 

 

There is no other inter se relation between directors as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

14. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the company, work 

performed by the Internal, Statutory, Secretarial Auditors and external agencies, the review performed by the 

management and the relevant Board Committees, the Board with the concurrence of the Audit Committee is of 

the opinion that the company Internal financial controls were adequate and effective as on 31st March, 2025. 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their Knowledge 

and ability confirm:- 

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

b) That we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the company at the end of financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e) That proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 

that such system were adequate and operating effectively; and 

f) That proper internal financial control was laid down and that such internal financial controls are 

adequate and were operating effectively. 
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15. AUDITORS 

 

a) Statutory Auditors and Auditor’s Report:  

M/s KASG & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002228C) was re-appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further term of five years as per Section 139 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 in the last Annual General Meeting held in 2024 on the recommendation of Audit 

Committee. 

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not 

call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 

adverse remark or disclaimer. 

During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter related to fraud under Section 

143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the 

Act. 

b) Secretarial Auditors: 

The Board had appointed M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates (Membership No. FCS 10703, C.O.P. No. 

15013), Practicing Company Secretaries, New Delhi, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 

2024-25. During the year under review the company complies with all applicable Secretarial 

Standards.  

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is enclosed as Annexure-I. 

The Secretarial Report annexed to this report are self-explanatory.  

 

During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter of fraud under Section 

143(12) of the Act, therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act. 

However, as the date of issuing this report, BSE Limited vide its email dated May 05, 2025, had 

imposed consolidated penalty (for previous financial years) of Rs. 85,22,397 for late/non-compliance 

of Regulation 27(2) (Corporate Governance), Regulation 31 (Shareholding Pattern), Regulation 33 

(Financial Results) and Regulation 34 (Annual Report), of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Intimation of the above under regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 

has been submitted on May 06, 2025. We have been informed by the Company that they are planning 

to seek review of the decision of the said Order or may take other suitable action in this regard. 

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee recommended and the 

Board of Directors appointed M/s. Mehak Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership No. 

FCS 10703, C.O.P. No. 15013) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company in relation to the Financial 

Year 2025-26. The Company has received their consent for appointment.  
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A Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 as required under 

Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 has been submitted to the stock exchanges within 

due time. 

c) Internal Auditors: 

Mr. Surendra Parsad, employee of the Company is the Internal Auditor of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2024-25. During the period under review no fraud was reported by the Auditors. 

Therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under section 134(3)(ca) of Companies Act, 2013.  

 

d) Cost Auditors: 

There is no statutory requirement to appoint the Cost Auditor as per Section 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. 

 

16. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the 

Corporate Governance requirements set out by Securities and Exchange Board of India. A separate report on 

Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 as required under Regulation 34(3) read 

with Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms 

an integral part of the annual report. 

A certificate from Practicing Company Secretary confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance under Schedule V (E) of the SEBI Listing Regulations is also annexed to the report on Corporate 

Governance. 

17. ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92 (3) of the Act, the annual return for the Financial Year 2024-25 is 

available on website of the Company at https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/investor  

18. MEETING OF THE BOARD 

Meetings of the Board are held on regular intervals to discuss and decide on various business policies, 

strategies, operational, financial and other matters. Due to business exigencies, the Board also approve some 

proposals through resolution passed by circulation from time to time. During the financial year 2024-25, seven 

(07) Board Meetings and one separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company were held. Detailed 

information on the meetings of the Board is included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms an 

integral part of this Annual Report. 

19. BOARD COMMITTEES  

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, your Board had constituted the 

following Committees in order to effectively carry out some of the diverse functions of the Board:  

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/investor
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 Audit Committee  

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

 Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

Details of the constitution of these Committees, which are in accordance with regulatory requirements, are 

published on the website of the Company viz. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015

/Composition%20of%20various%20committes%20of%20Board%20of%20Directors.pdf  

 

The details of the composition of the committees of the Board, meetings held during the financial year, etc. are 

set out in the Report on Corporate Governance, forming part of this Annual Report. During the year under 

review, all recommendations of the Committees of the Board have been accepted by the Board of Directors. 

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions which is also available on Company’s 

website at 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party

%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf  The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the 

criteria for making the omnibus approval by the Audit Committee within the overall framework of the policy on 

related party transactions. 

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. The particulars of 

contracts or arrangements with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

the Financial Year 2024-25 in the prescribed format, AOC - 2 is annexed as Annexure - II to the Board Report. 

Disclosure of all the transactions entered by the Company with related parties is set out in Notes of the 

Financial Statements of the Company in the format prescribed in the relevant Accounting Standards. 

21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

During the year under review, the Company has not granted any Loans, Guarantees, provided any securities or 

made Investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed 

thereunder. 

22. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

During the year under review, the Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the 

Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

as approved by the Central Government, in terms of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Composition%20of%20various%20committes%20of%20Board%20of%20Directors.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Composition%20of%20various%20committes%20of%20Board%20of%20Directors.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf
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23. POLICY FOR PROCEDURE OF INQUIRY IN CASE OF LEAK OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE 

INFORMATION (“UPSI”) 

In pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the company has formulated a written 

policy and procedures for inquiry in case of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and initiate 

appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and inform the Board 

promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries. In pursuant to this regulation, the Company has 

adopted the Policy for Procedure of Inquiry in Case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

(“UPSI”). Policy for procedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive information (“UPSI”) 

can be accessed on the company’s website at 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Amended%20'Code%20of%20Pra

ctices%20&%20Procedures%20for%20fair%20disclosures%20of%20UPSI'%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf.  

29. INSIDER TRADING -CODE OF CONDUCT 

In pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted the Insider 

Trading Code. The Code provides framework for dealing with the securities of Company in mandated manner. 

The above Insider Trading-code of conduct can be accessed on the company’s website at 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_Regulate_Mon

itor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf. 

30. FINANCIAL YEAR 

The Company follows the Financial Year commence from 1 April and ends 31 March of subsequent year. 

31. INSURANCE OF PROPERTIES AND ASSETS OF THE COMPANY 

The Company has taken the required insurance coverage for its assets against the possible risks like fire, flood, 

public liability, marine, burglary etc. 

32. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

33. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF REPORT 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate 

and the date of the report. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Amended%20'Code%20of%20Practices%20&%20Procedures%20for%20fair%20disclosures%20of%20UPSI'%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Amended%20'Code%20of%20Practices%20&%20Procedures%20for%20fair%20disclosures%20of%20UPSI'%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_Regulate_Monitor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_Regulate_Monitor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf
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34. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Financial Statements of the Company comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. Your 

Company has put in place adequate internal controls with reference to accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information, commensurate with the size, scale 

and complexity of operations and ensures compliance with various policies and statutes in keeping with the 

organization’s pace of growth, increasing complexity of operations, prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors. The design and effectiveness of key controls were tested and no material weaknesses were observed. 

The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the adequacy of internal financial control periodically. Efficacy of 

Internal control systems are tested periodically by Internal Auditors with and Internal Control over financial 

reporting is tested and certified by Statutory Auditors. The internal financial control system of the Company is 

supplemented with internal audits, regular reviews by the management and checks by the Internal Audit 

Team. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been highlighted for inefficiency or 

inadequacy of such controls. 

35. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNING AND OUTGO 

 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The Company has continued its efforts to organize incremental improvements in energy conservation 

across plant locations, plant equipment and technologies.  

(i) Regular review of energy conservation, consumption and effective control and utilization of 

energy.  

(ii) The Company has deployed an LED-based lighting system at the factory which is helping in 

curtailing lighting energy consumption. 

(iii) Increasing awareness in the employees through counseling session for environmental safety to 

educate like- 

 Monitors are turned off by employees before leaving for the day. Desktops and laptops 

hibernate when not in use for more than ten minutes. 

 The staff ensures that lights are switched off when employees are not in the office 

 Monitoring of switching off the air conditioners and other electrical equipment which are 

not required within the premises, diesel generator sets are used only in case of extreme 

necessity, and these are well maintained to increase efficiency, resulting in less wastage of 

fuel 

(iv) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy: 
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Company is exploring alternate source of energy like roof top solar plants in factories to 

maximize the utilization of alternate source of energy. However, presently alternate source of 

energy is very low. 

 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:- 

 The Company has installed latest Technology Equipment using Vision Inspection Systems at 

Key Stations.  

 

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution:- The Company is now using 39.81% of imported raw Material during the financial 

year 2024-25 as against 47.28% last financial Year 2023-24. 

(iii) in case of imported technology - Not Applicable 

(a) The details of technology imported; 

(b) The year of import; 

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed;  

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons   

thereof; and 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 

Your company is manufacturing Halogen Lamps with well-established technologies and hence does not 

require any Research and Development efforts. 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Earnings from Exports  2224.06 

Outgo Import of Raw Material & Capital Goods    1927.83 

Foreign Travel / Mkt. Expenses                                                5.09 

Exhibition     11.98 

Commission                                                                            0.00 

Others                                                                                                 0.45 

NET EARNING                                                                                       278.71 

 

36. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Your Company has taken necessary steps for risk management including identifying risk which may threaten 

the existence/operations of the Company and also taking steps as and when required to mitigate the risk such 

as various insurance like marine, fire etc. 
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37. VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees pursuant to Section 177(9) of the 

Act and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement and 

to enable Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 

fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, and to report incidents of leak or suspected leak of unpublished price 

sensitive information. The said Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained in respect of whistle 

blowers whilst dealing with concerns and also specified that no discrimination will be meted out to any person 

for a genuinely raised concern. The mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of 

Director(s) and Employee(s) and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 

appropriate and exceptional cases. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Mechanism is available on 

the website of the Company viz. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015

/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf  

 

During the financial year under review, no complaint pertaining to the Company was received under the 

Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

38. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company believes that all individuals have the right to be treated with dignity and strives to create a 

workplace which is free of gender bias and sexual harassment. Therefore, the Company has in place a policy 

on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace”, pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH) read with the 

Rules thereunder. The Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment for all its 

employees. Your Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 

Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. During the financial year 

under review, no complaints were received from any of the employees regarding Sexual Harassment at 

workplace. 

39. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

The statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended herewith as 

Annexure III to the Boards’ Report. The statement pertaining to Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of your 

Company, will be provided upon request.  

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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However, considering the first proviso to section 136(1) of the Act, the Report, excluding the aforesaid 

statement, is being sent to the Members of the Company. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said 

statement is open for inspection by the members. 

40. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report for the year under review, is presented in a separate section, forming part of the Annual 

Report annexed as Annexure -  IV. 

41. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not fall within 

preview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, it is not required to formulate policy on 

Corporate Social Responsibility. 

42. ANNUAL COMPLIANCE AFFIRMATION 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 26(3) of Listing Regulations, all members of the Board of Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the “Code of Conduct for Board of Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel”. 

43. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 

 

The requirements under Regulation 34(2)(f) and the proviso thereof of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements), 2015 is not applicable to the Company for this reporting period. 

44. AUDIT TRAIL APPLICABILITY (AUDIT AND AUDITORS) RULES, 2014 – RULE 11 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
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45. GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters as there were 

no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise as per Section 

43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b. The Company does not have any subsidiaries hence, disclosure on remuneration or commission 

received by the Managing Director or the Whole-time Directors of the Company from any of its 

subsidiaries is not applicable. 

c. The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by 

employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees; 

d. Disclosure on non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees 

under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

e. As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, there are no shares lying in 

the Suspense Account of the Company so details are not applicable. 

f. The Company has not made any application and there are no pending proceedings under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

g. There was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or Financial Institutions during the financial 

year 2024-25. 

 

46. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  

 

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 

objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the 

meaning of applicable Securities Laws and Regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those 

expressed or implied. Important factors that could make difference to the Company’s operations include 

changes in the government regulations, developments in the infrastructure segment, tax regimes and 

economic developments within India. 

 

47. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Company has been able to perform efficiently because of the creativity, integrity and continuous 

improvement in functions and areas as well as the efficient utilization of the Company’s resources for profitable 

growth. 
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The Directors hereby wish to place on record their appreciation of the efficient and loyal services rendered by 

each and every employee, without whose wholehearted efforts, the overall satisfactory performance would not 

have been possible. 

 

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every member of the JAGAN family. Their 

dedicated efforts and enthusiasm has been integral to your Company’s growth. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 05.09.2025 

Place : Kundli, Haryana  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN - 01837337 

For and on Behalf of the Board  

For Jagan Lamps Ltd. 

 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal 

Director 

DIN - 07887630 
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ANNEXURE-I 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  

The Members,  

Jagan Lamps Limited 

Narela Piao-Manihari Road, 

Kundli-131028, District-Sonipat, Haryana 

 

I, Mehak Gupta, Proprietor of Mehak Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the Secretarial 

Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 

Jagan Lamps Limited (CIN - L31501HR1993PLC033993) (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, Managing Director, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in 

my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter:  

I have examined the records provided by the Company and returns filed with the respective authorities’ up to 

the time of signing of this report, according to the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (as amended)(‘the Act’) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) Secretarial Standard-1 (‘SS-1’) and Secretarial Standard-2 (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India; 

(iii) Listing agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited; 

(iv) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(v) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

(vi) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;  

(vii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 (as amended); 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

(as amended); 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (as amended) - (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021 - (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021 - (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 - 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, 2015 (SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015); and 

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

(viii) I further report that, having regards to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of Labour Laws, Environmental Laws and other related 

Industry specific laws to the extent applicable to the Company.  

During the audit period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

However, as the date of issuing this report, BSE Limited vide its email dated May 05, 2025, had imposed 

consolidated penalty (for previous financial years) of Rs. 85,22,397 for late/non-compliance of Regulation 27(2) 

(Corporate Governance), Regulation 31 (Shareholding Pattern), Regulation 33 (Financial Results) and 

Regulation 34 (Annual Report), of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Intimation of the above under regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 has been submitted on May 06, 2025. We 

have been informed by the Company that they are planning to seek review of the decision of the said Order or 

may take other suitable action in this regard. 
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I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. During the period under review, change in the composition of 

the Board of Directors were made in due compliance of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

Adequate notice has been given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings/Committee Meetings during 

the financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent generally at least seven days 

in advance to all the Directors and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. On 

inspection of the minutes as captured and recorded it was ascertained that all the decisions of the Board and 

Committees’ Meetings were unanimous and there were no dissenting views.  

I further report that, based on the review of the compliance reports and the certificates of the Company 

Executive and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion there are adequate 

systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The Company is generally 

regular in filing of e-forms with the Registrar of Companies within the time prescribed under the Act. 

I further report that during the audit period, there was no specific event/action having a major bearing on 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc, 

except as mentioned below: - 

 

During the period under review, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 06, 2024, approved Joint 

Venture agreement entered between the Company and Top Lamps (UK) Limited, United Kingdom for the 

purpose of expansion of market for the products manufactured by the Company, as per the terms of 

agreement the Company will acquire 50% stake of Gerlux Lighting Limited, Joint venture Company, from Top 

Lamps (UK) Limited at a price of £ 5.0 each shares for equal control and will appoint equal number of Directors 

in the Board of Gerlux Lighting Limited. 

I further have to state that: 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test check basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis of my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company. 

4. Where-ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on 

test check basis. 
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6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Mehak Gupta & Associates  

Company Secretaries  

 

Sd/- 

Mehak Gupta 

Prop.  

FCS No.: 10703 

COP No.:  15013 

Peer Review No. 1643/2022 

UDIN: F010703G000464631 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date:  May 28, 2025 

 

  



 
 
 
 
Directors’ Report (Contd.) 

 

Annual Report 2024-25 [45] 
 

Statutory Report 

ANNEXURE-II 

Form No. AOC – 2 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS/TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014] 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

The Company has not entered into any contract, arrangement or transaction with its related parties which is 

not at arm’s length during the financial year 2024-25.  

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

1a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of 

relationship 

Jagan Automotives Pvt. Ltd. 

[Related Party under section 2(76)(iv) of Companies 

Act, 2013] 

b. Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transactions 

Sale & Purchase Agreement 

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / 

transactions 

From 01.04.2017 onwards 

d. Value (Amount in Rs.) Total Purchase during the financial year is Rs. 28.38 

Lacs. 

Total sale during the financial year is Rs. 279.74 Lacs. 

e. Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including the 

value, if any: 

Sale & Purchase of goods & Raw Materials. 

f. Date of approval by the Board, if any: 06.03.2017 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any:  Nil 

 

 

2a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of 

relationship 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal 

[Related Party under section 2(76)(i) of Companies Act, 
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2013] 

b. Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transactions 

Rent Agreement 

c. Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions 

05.01.2024 to 04.12.2024 and renewed again with Audit 

committee & Board approval for a period of 05.12.2024 

to 04.11.2025 

d. Value (Amount in Rs.) Rs. 5 per Sq. Ft. 

e. Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including the 

value, if any: 

The Company Shall pay monthly rent of Rs. 5 per Sq. 

Ft. on land measuring 66591.10 Sq.ft. of Mr. Ashish 

Aggarwal. 

f. Date of approval by the Board, if any: 14.11.2024 (during the Financial Year) 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any:  Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 05.09.2025 

Place : Kundli, Haryana  

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN - 01837337 

For and on Behalf of the Board  

For Jagan Lamps Ltd. 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal 

Director 

DIN - 07887630 
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ANNEXURE- III 

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 

5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 

RULE, 2014. 

 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25: 

 

Except the remuneration paid to Mr. Ashish Aggarwal, Managing Director of the Company, none of 

other directors drawing remuneration from the Company. 

 

The ratio of the remuneration of Mr. Ashish Aggarwal, Managing Director to the median 

remuneration of the employees is 19.25%. 

 

Independent Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees for attending Board/Committee 

meetings as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. They are not paid any commission 

or any other remuneration. 

 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial officer and 

Company Secretary during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as under: 

 

S. No Name of Director/KMP and Designation % Increase in remuneration in  

FY 2024-25 

1. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal, Managing Director 0.00 % 

2. Ms. Rekha Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer 0.00 % 

3. Mr. Pratyus Kumar, Company Secretary 0.00 % 

 

(iii) The percentage increase in the mediation remuneration of employees of the Company 

for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025: 

 

The median remuneration of the employees in the financial year 2024-25 was decreased by -9.81% 

as compared to last Financial Year. 

 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 

2025: 

 

There were 200 permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2025. 

 

(v) The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

managerial personnel in the last Financial Year i.e. 2024-25 and its comparison with the 

percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point 
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out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration: 

 

Average percentile increases in the salaries of employees excluding the managerial personnel for 

Financial Year 2024-25 is 0.00 %. 

 

Average percentile increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel in the last Financial Year 

2024-25 is 0.00%. 

 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:  

 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is as per 

the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

There were no employee(s) in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 1.02 Crores or more per annum or in receipt of 

remuneration of Rs. 8.50 Lakhs per month, under Rule 5(2)(i)&(ii) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

Neither any of the employee was in receipt of remuneration in that year at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in 

excess of that drawn by the Managing Director Or Whole-Time Director and nor any of the above employees 

himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children holds 2% or more equity shares of the 

Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 05.09.2025 

Place : Kundli, Haryana  

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN - 01837337 

For and on Behalf of the Board  

                    For Jagan Lamps 

Ltd. 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal 

Director 

DIN - 07887630 
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ANNEXURE-IV  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Industry Structure & Developments 

The Indian automobile industry became the fourth largest industry in the world with the two-wheeler segment. 

Globally, India’s automotive industry is at the forefront of many segments. To list a few: by volume it ranks 

first in two wheelers, segment A Cars and Tractors. India is renowned as a global hub for frugal and scalable 

engineering. Due to the a growing middle class and a demography dominated by a young population, the two-

wheeler segment dominates the market in terms of volume, catalysed by the penetration of the automobile 

companies in the rural sectors. The Indian economy appears to be headed for sustained sluggishness in 2024-

25.  

The position will be clearer, when the new government elected. The long-term outlook of the country appears 

to be positive on account of the various economic reforms, increasing aspirations, sustained consumption 

momentum and a national under-consumption of a range of products which is appearing to correct itself. 

Outlook, Opportunities and Threats 

The Indian auto-components industry is projected to become the third largest in the world by 2025 and is 

expected to account for as much as 5% to 7% of India’s GDP by 2026. Globalization coupled with favorable 

government initiatives and significant FDI inflow from major global players will facilitate the growth of the 

Indian auto -components sector. However, all these perceptions are subject to new things happening in the 

industry that may change the landscape of the industry in the medium to long term. 

Apart from this, global parameter is witnessed that there is very heavy demand in the Automobile Industry in 

India and Globally. This is an opportunity for the Company to grow with their production capacity and which 

gives boost to the auto components and automotive bulbs manufacturer and traders. 

Segment wise Performance 

The company operates in single segment of Automotives Bulbs & Lights. 

Discussion on Financial Performance  

The Revenue from operations decrease by 2.7 % during the year to 4,979.72 Lacs from 5,117.23 Lacs in 

previous year. The Profit before tax was decrease by 4.369 % during the year to  375.59 Lacs from 392.75 

Lacs in the previous year.  

 

There were no material changes affecting the financial position of the Company since the end of financial year 

under review. 

Risk and Concerns 

Due to technological advancements and consequent disruptions, it would be difficult to predict the industry’s 

performance in very precise terms. These trends could change the industry matrix at every level, whether 

OEMs or Components manufacturer, trigger new competitions and generate a totally different market order.  
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Internal Control Systems & Their adequacy 

Your Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and 

complexity of its operations. Internal controls are reviewed periodically by the internal auditor and report 

significant audit observations, if any, to the Audit Committee and follow up actions, if required.  

 

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of inter control systems commensurate with the 

nature of the business.  

 

Human Resource Management 

We deeply value our people and cherish their dedication and relentless efforts to steer the business ahead and 

help us get closer to our goals. 

Key Financial Ratios 

 

S. NO. 

 

 

PARTICULARS 

 

FY 2024-
25 

 

FY 2023-24 

 

% 

CHANGE 

 

 

REASON FOR CHANGE IN 

RATIO 

1 Debtors Turnover 

(Days) 

77.69 66.55 11.14 Due to change in customer mix 

 

2 Inventory Turnover 

(Days) 

174.45 100.60 73.85 Due to supply chain disruptions 

 

3 Interest Coverage 

Ratio (Times) 

5.02 18.92 -13.9 Due to use of working capital 

funds 

 

4 Current Ratio (Times) 2.00 2.44 -0.44 Better management of funds 

 

5 Debt Equity Ratio 

(Times) 

0.28 0.18 0.1 Due to use of working capital 

funds 

 

6 Operating Profit 

Margin (%) 

11.03 9.41 1.62 

 

Due to change in cost of products 

 

7 Net Profit Margin (%) 5.70 5.74 -0.04 Due to change in cost of products 

 

8 Return on net worth 

(%) 

8.52 9.70 -1.18 Due to change in share capital 

 

 

Disclaimer  

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 

estimates and expectations are categorized as ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable 

laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied.  
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Important developments that could affect the Company’s operations include competition, employee cost and 

significant changes in the political and economic environment in India, environmental standards, tax laws, 

litigation and labour relations amongst other factors. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 05.09.2025 

Place : Kundli, Haryana  

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN- 01837337 

For and on Behalf of the Board  

                    For Jagan Lamps 

Ltd. 

 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal 

Director 

DIN- 07887630 
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT 

In compliance with Regulation 34 read with Section C of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, the Company 

presents its Corporate Governance Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025: 

Guided by the Vision, Mission and Purpose, the Company believes in adhering good corporate governance by 

complying with all laws in true letter and spirit. 

OUR VISION OUR MISSION OUR PURPOSE 

To be a leading global supplier of 

automotive lighting products 

beyond the expectations of our 

esteemed customers. 

To provide highest quality 

standards, superior performance 

and reliability, and deliver long 

life, high visibility and strain free 

driving. 

To produce high quality 

automotive lighting using latest 

technology and innovations for 

new generation vehicles. 

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

The Corporate Governance at Jagan Lamps Limited is emphasizes on fair and transparent governance 

and disclosure with the motive of profit maximization to stakeholders. The Company believes in 

conducting its business with responsibility, integrity, fairness and transparency and takes into 

consideration the rights of all stakeholders and endeavors long term value creation for all. 

 

The Company believes that corporate governance is not only restricted to compliances. Although, it 

something beyond the laws and we believe that it is somehow connected to basic business ethics and 

values that need to be adhered. As this is a continuous process and practices, hence, the Company 

strives to improve its practice to give more transparency at all level of organization. 

 

The Company adheres to compliance requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as regard to Corporate Governance. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is balanced with Executive and Non-Executive Directors 

including requisites number of independent directors. The Board of Directors comprised of total six 

directors including Non-Executive Independent Directors as on the dated of the Financial Year ended 

31st Match, 2025. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company who is 
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an Executive Director and a Promoter. 

 

2.1. Composition of the Board of Directors 

The below table describing the composition of Board of Directors and their categories and shareholding 

including the Directorship in other Companies as on March 31, 2025: 

 

Name of the Director Category No. of 

Directorship 

held in other 

Public 

Companies 

No. of Committee 

membership held in 

other Public 

Companies 

No. of Equity 

Shares held in 

the Company 

As 

Member 

As 

Chairman 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal Executive Director & 

Promoter 

0 0 0 3347028  

(45.85 %) 

Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Non-Executive 

Director & Promoter 

0 0 0 513872  

(7.04%) 

Mr. Raghav Aggarwal Executive Director 0 0 0 Nil 

Mr. Saras Kumar 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

0 0 0 Nil 

Mr. Hemant Mangla 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

0 0 0 Nil 

Mrs. Sweta Nathani 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

0 0 0 Nil 

 

Notes: 

 

a. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal and Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal are the promoters of the Company and Mr. Raghav 

Aggarwal is relative of the said promoters. 

b. None of the Non - Executive Directors holds any shares in the company. The Company has not 

issued any convertible instrument. 

c. In compliance with Regulation 17A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors serve as 

Independent Directors in more than 7 Listed Companies. The Managing Director does not serve as 

an Independent Director in any other Listed Company. 
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The composition of the board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors on the board holds directorships in more than ten public Companies including 

Listed Companies. Further, none of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of 

more than five committees. 

2.2. Meetings and Attendance of Directors 

During the financial year 2024-25, total seven (7) Board Meetings were held on 06.04.2024, 30.05.2024, 

12.08.2024, 30.08.2024, 14.11.2024, 13.02.2025 and 08.03.2025. The required quorum were presents 

at the above listed meetings of Board and the gap between two Meetings did not exceed 120 days as 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (2) of the Listing Regulations. 

Name of the Director Board Meetings 

entitled to attend 

No. of Board 

Meetings 

attended during 

the FY 

Attendance of 

Directors in Last 

AGM held on 

30.09.2024 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal 7 7 Yes 

Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal 7 7 Yes 

Mr. Raghav Aggarwal 7 6 Yes 

Mr. Saras Kumar 7 7 Yes 

Mr. Hemant Mangla 7 7 Yes 

Mrs. Sweta Nathani 7 7 Yes 

 

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 

None of the Directors of the Company is related inter-se, except Mr. Ashish Aggarwal, Mrs. Rekha 

Aggarwal and Mr. Raghav Aggarwal who are relatives as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.3. Skills/ Expertise/Competence of the Board of Directors 

The Directors of the Company possesses a wide range of skills and experience to the Board, which 

enhances the quality of functions and the decision-making process of the Board. The below are the core 

skills, expertise and competencies of the Board members. The independent directors of the Company also 

possess the desired skills, experience and knowledge in the different fields which is helpful for the Board. 

The Independent Directors discharge their responsibilities with full impartiality as independent directors. 
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The below table/matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competencies: 

 

 

S. No.  

 

Name of the 

Director 

 

 

Skill / Expertise / Competence 

1 Mr. Ashish Aggarwal Leadership, overall corporate and general management, 

Marketing, Operations and Legal 

2 Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Finance, Operations, General management and Corporate 

Governance 

3 Mr. Raghav Aggarwal IT, Sales & Marketing, Business Relationship, Operations and 

Labour Relations 

4 Mr. Saras Kumar Commercial, Finance, and Business Management 

5 Mr. Hemant Mangla Finance, Banking, General management and Labour Relations 

6 Mrs. Sweta Nathani Finance, Taxation, Corporate Governance and Investor Relation 

 

2.4. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

A. Familiarization Programmes 

The familiarization program and other disclosures as specified under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is available on the Company’s website at 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Reg

ulations_2015/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf  

The Independent Directors, as and when required, are provided with necessary documents, 

information and policies to enable them to familiarize with the policies. 

B. Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations 2015 and are Independent of the 

Management 

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and that they are independent of the 

management. 

C. Detailed reasons for the Resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the 

expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no 

other material reasons 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf
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None of the Independent Directors of the company resigned during the financial year under 

reporting. 

D. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

During the financial year 2024-25, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 

March 08, 2025, inter alia to review the Audit strategies and performance of the Board and the 

meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors in compliance of Regulation 25 of SEBI 

Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013. None of the other executive or non-

executive directors were present in the meeting. 

E. Company’s Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor, Report Trading by Designated Persons 

The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor, and Report Trading by 

Designated Persons to deter the insider trading in the securities of the Company based on the 

unpublished price sensitive information. The Code envisages procedures to be followed and 

disclosures to be made while dealing in the securities of the Company. 

The full text of the Code is available on the website of Company under “Policies & Codes” in the 

Corporate Governance section and can be accessed at https: 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_

Regulate_Monitor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf  

3. BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

Audit Committee 

A. Terms of reference 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee as per the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations 2015. The role of the Audit Committee includes the following: 

1. Oversight of Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, re-appointment, remuneration and other terms of appointment 

of statutory auditors of Company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 

the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_Regulate_Monitor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_Regulate_Monitor_and_Report_by_Insiders.pdf
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b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management. 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 

g) Qualification or Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus / notice and the report 

submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights 

issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process; 

8. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

9. Formulating the policies on Related Party Transactions and Omnibus approval and review on 

quarterly basis the transactions with Related Parties; 

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

12. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

13. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 

audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

14. discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 

15. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 

and reporting the matter to the Board; 

16. discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

19. approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience 

and background, etc. of the candidate; 
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20. carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

21. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is 

lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into 

force of this provision. 

22. consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of Schemes involving merger, 

demerger, amalgamation etc. on the Company and its shareholders – no such transaction so far. 

B. Mandatorily review the following information (if any): 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted 

by management; 

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject 

to review by the Audit Committee; and 

6. Statement of deviations – Not applicable to financial year 2024-25: 

a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to the stock exchanges in terms of sub-Regulation (1) of Regulation 32 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations; and 

b) Annual statement off unutilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

Document/prospectus/notice in terms of sub-Regulation (7) of Regulation 32 of SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

C. Number of Meetings: During the Financial Year 2024-25, total five Audit Committee meetings were 

held on May 30, 2024, August 12, 2024, August 30, 2024, November 14, 2024 and February 13, 2025. 

D. Composition, Meeting and Attendance of members of Committee: 

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee comprises of three Directors 

including two Independent Directors as required. All the members of the Committee have adequate 

knowledge of financial and accounting matters. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the 

Audit Committee. 
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The Composition and attendance of members of the Audit Committee are tabled below: 

Sr. No. Name Category Designation No. of 

Meetings 

Held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

1. Mr. Saras Kumar Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 5 5 

2. Mrs. Shweta Nathani Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Member 5 5 

3. Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Non-Executive – 

Non 

Independent 

Director 

Member 5 5 

 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

A. Terms of Reference: 

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes the 

following: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a director and recommend to the Board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel And Other Employees; 

2. For every appointment of an Independent Director, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on 

the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an 

Independent Director; 

3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of 

Directors; 

4. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; 

5. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal;  

6. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the 
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basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors; and 

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

B. Number of Meetings: 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, total two meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

were held on May 30, 2025 and August 30, 2025. 

C. Composition of Committee and Attendance of Members 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is setup as per the provisions of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The Committee 

comprises of total three Non-Executive Directors, out of which two are the Independent Directors. As 

prescribed under law, the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the said Committee. 

 

              Below are the compassion of the committee and attendance as recorded: 

Sr. No Name Category Designation No. of 

Meetings 

Held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

1. Mr. Hemant Mangla Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 2 2 

2. Mrs. Shweta Nathani Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Member 2 2 

3. Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Non-Executive – 

Non 

Independent 

Director 

Member 2 2 

 

D. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 

Evaluations of performance of the Independent Director are as under:  

1. Attendance and contribution at Board and Committee meetings;  

2. Appropriate mix of expertise, skills, behavior, experience, leadership qualities, and understanding 

of business, strategic direction to align company’s value and standards; and 

3. Knowledge of finance, accounts, legal, investment, marketing, internal controls, risk management, 

assessment, business operations, processes, and corporate governance. 
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As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid out the 

manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and individual Directors 

including Independent Directors to be carried out by the Board. 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

A. Terms of Reference: 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as under: 

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the shareholders of the company. 

B. Composition, Meeting and Attendance: 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of 

the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Act.  The Committee consists of three 

members including two Independent Director.  

The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-executive Independent Director.  

Number of Meetings: During the Financial Year 2024-25, total two meeting of Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee were held on August 27, 2024 and February 10, 2025. 

Sr. No Name Category Designation No. of 

Meetings 

Held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

1. Mr. Saras Kumar Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 2 2 

2. Mrs. Shweta Nathani Non-Executive – 

Independent 

Director 

Member 2 2 
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3. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal Executive 

Director 

Member 2 2 

 

Name and designation of compliance officer: 

Mr. Pratyus Kumar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company whose office has 

been ceased since May, 2025. 

 

C. Details of No. of Shareholder’s complaint received, No. of Complaints not solved to the 

satisfaction of shareholders and No. of pending complaints 

The Company has received only 1 complaint from the shareholders and resolved that during the period 

under report sand has no pending investor complaint as on 31st March, 2025. 

 

Risk Management Committee  

At present, the provision related to constitution of Risk Management committee is not applicable to the 

Company. 

4. SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

a. Particulars of Senior Management Personnel (SMP):  

Name of Senior Management 

Personnel 

Designation 

Mr. Ashish Aggarwal Managing Director (KMP) 

Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal Chief Financial Officer (KMP) 

Mr. Pratyus Kumar Company Secretary (KMP) – Resigned 

Mr. Narinder Singh Operational Head – Ceased 

Mr. Ishwar Chand Operational Head 

Mr. Raghav Aggarwal Marketing Head 

Mr. Surendra Prasad Account & Finance Head 

Mr. Mukesh Srivastava Human Resource – Ceased 

Mr. Abhimanyu Garg Human Resource   

 

b. During the period, the changes in the Senior Management or Key Management Personnel 

of the Company are as follows: 
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Mr. Narinder Singh, Operational Head ceased w.e.f. 16.01.2025 during the reporting period. Whereas 

Mr. Ishwar Chand is appointed as Operational Head. 

Mr. Mukesh Srivastava Ceased from the position of HR Manager and Mr. Abhimanyu Garg, HR 

Manager is appointed w.e.f. February 02, 2025. Further, Mr. Pratyus Kumar, Company Secretary & 

Compliance officer of the Company has resigned from his office in April, 2025 and the resignation was 

accepted by the Company from 30th May, 2025. 

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

a. All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the 

Company: 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the company has no pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 

Non-Executive Directors except the payment of sitting fees for attending the board meetings and its 

allied committees. 

b. Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors: 

The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is based on the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 

the Company. The non-executive directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the 

Board. 

The detail of the policy is available on the website of the Company at- 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regul

ations_2015/Criteria%20of%20making%20payments%20to%20Non-Executive%20Directors.pdf  

Disclosures with respect to Remuneration/Sitting Fee paid 

(i) Details of remuneration/sitting fee paid to Directors during the Financial Year 2024-

25 are given below: 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Sr. No. Name and Designation Sitting Fee 

(A) 

Salary 

(B) 

Perquisites 

(C) 

Contribution 

to P.F. 

(D) 

Total 

(A+B+C+D) 

1. Mr. Ashish Aggarwal 

(Managing Director) 

NA 32.70 - - 32.70 

2. Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal* 

(Director & CFO) 

NA 7.20 - - 7.20 

3. Mr. Raghav Aggarwal 0.02 - - - 0.02 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Criteria%20of%20making%20payments%20to%20Non-Executive%20Directors.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Criteria%20of%20making%20payments%20to%20Non-Executive%20Directors.pdf
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(Non-Executive Director) 

4. Mr. Saras Kumar 

(Independent Director) 

0.14 - - - 0.14 

5. Mr. Hemant Mangla 

(Independent Director) 

0.14 - - - 0.14 

6. Mrs. Sweta Nathani 

(Independent Director) 

0.14 - - - 0.14 

 

*Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal is not paid with remuneration or sitting fee as Director. She is drawing 

salary as Chief Financial Officer of the Company which was amount to Rs. 7.20 Lakh during the 

Financial Year 2024-25. 

(ii) Service Contract, Severance Fees and Notice Period of the Executive Directors: 

The term of appointment/re-appointment of the Executive Directors is governed by the resolutions 

passed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Board and the Shareholders of the 

Company. No separate Service Contract is entered into between the Company and Directors. 

 

(iii) Stock Options details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period 

over which accrued and over which exercisable: 

The Company has no ESOP Scheme. Hence, during the Financial Year 2024-25, no stock options 

were granted to any of the Directors of the Company. 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

A. Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings held and Special resolution 

passed thereat: 

AGM Financial Year Date Time Location 

32nd 2024-25 September 30, 2024 10.00 A.M. Registered Office 

31st 2023-24 September 30, 2023 01.00 P.M. Registered Office 

30th 2022-23 September 29, 2022 01.00 P.M. Registered Office 

 

The following are the special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs: 
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AGM Held On Special Resolution 

September 30, 2024 1. To approve the remuneration to Mr. Raghav Aggarwal, Director. 

2. To increase the overall limit of maximum remuneration payable to 

all the Directors and Manager. 

September 30, 2023 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Hemant Mangla as an Independent 

Director of the Company for a second term of five years. 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Saras Kumar as an Independent Director 

of the Company for a second term of five years. 

September 29, 2022 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashish Aggarwal as a Managing Director of 

the Company for a period of five years. 

2. Authority to Board of Directors to borrow money upto the limit of 

Rs. 50 Crores under Section 180(1)(a) of the Act. 

3. Authority to the Board of Directors under Section 180 (1) (a) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 for creation of charge upto the limit of 

Rs. 50 Crore. 

4. Approval of Related Party Transactions of the Company. 

 

B. No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during Financial Year 2024-25. 

C. Details of special resolution passed in the last year through Postal Ballot: 

No resolution was passed, during the last year, through postal ballot. 

D. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: Not Applicable 

E. Details of the special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot and 

procedure for postal ballot: 

No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot. 

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

(a) Quarterly Results: 

Quarterly un-audited financial results along with limited reviewed reports except for the fourth quarter 

are filed with stock exchange where the stock of the company are listed and also published on the 

website of the Company in addition to News Paper advertisement. For the fourth quarter, the 

Company publishes the Audited financial results for the complete financial year. 
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(b) Newspapers wherein results normally published: 

The results are normally published or advertised in the Financial Express (English) and Jansata (Hindi – 

Regional Language). 

(c) Website, where displayed: 

In terms of Regulation 10 of the Listing Regulations, the Company complies with the online filing 

requirements on electronic platforms of BSE Limited (BSE) viz., BSE Listing Centre. The Members / 

Investors can view the details of electronic filings done by the Company on the websites of BSE i.e., 

www.bseindia.com.  

The information’s as required are also available on the Company website at 

http://www.jaganlamps.com as required under Regulation 46(2) and other provisions.  

(d) Official news releases: 

The Company regularly publishes an information update on its financial results and also displays 

official news releases, if any, on its website at https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/investor  

(e) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: 

At present, No such incidence of holding by Institutional Investor recorded. Hence, there is no such 

presentation was required. 

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

(a) Annual General Meeting - Day, Date, Time and Venue 33rd Annual General Meeting 

Date : Monday, September 29, 2025 

Time : 10:00 A.M 

Venue : Company’s Registered office i.e. Jagan Lamps Limited, Narela Piao Manihari, Kundli, dist. – 

Sonipat, Haryana- 131028. 

(b) Financial Year: The Financial Year of the Company starts from April 1, of a year and ends on March 

31, of the following year. 

(c) Book Closure:  

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 

September 23, 2025 to Monday, September 29, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

(d) Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable 

(e) Listing on Stock Exchanges and Annual Listing Fee: 

a. Details of Stock Exchange: 

BSE Limited (BSE) 

http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.jaganlamps.com/
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/investor
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Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001 

b. Annual listing fee for the financial year 2025-26, has been paid by the Company to BSE.  

c. Annual custodian charges of Depository have also been paid to NSDL and CDSL. 

(f) Stock Code: BSE- 530711 

ISIN: INE144C01014 

(g) Market Price Data: The monthly high & low prices and volumes of the shares traded at BSE during 

the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follow: 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Month High Low Volume 

Apr-24 115.7 96 163396 

May-24 106 82.6 264016 

Jun-24 109 77.63 472695 

Jul-24 105 92.1 180303 

Aug-24 97.96 87.93 152179 

Sep-24 111.94 90 660846 

Oct-24 101.6 84 171748 

Nov-24 95 84 91457 

Dec-24 98.9 86.8 212297 

Jan-25 101.9 80.55 126910 

Feb-25 92.17 65 73500 

Mar-25 87 61.2 182462 

 

(h) Share Price Performance in comparison to broad-based indices BSE Sensex: 

 

COMPARISON OF JLL PRICE VIS-A-VIS BSE SENSEX 

(Based on closing value of JLL Share Price and BSE Sensex) 

 

Month JLL Closing Price BSE SENSEX 

April-24 102 74482.78 

May-24 89.95 73961.31 

Jun-24 98.27 79032.73 

July-24 96.81 81741.34 

Aug-24 89.74 82365.77 

Sep-24 92.34 84299.78 

Oct-24 89.1 79389.06 
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Nov-24 87.45 79802.79 

Dec-24 95.55 78139.01 

Jan-25 86.77 77500.57 

Feb-25 67.39 73198.1 

Mar-25 72.96 77414.92 

 

COMPARISON OF JLL PRICE VIS-A-VIS BSE SENSEX 

(Based on average of High and Low of JLL Share Price and BSE Sensex) 

Month JLL BSE 

Apr-24 105.85 74,482.78 

May-24 94.30 73,961.31 

Jun-24 92.99 79,032.73 

Jul-24 99.05 81,741.34 

Aug-24 92.95 82,365.77 

Sep-24 100.97 84,299.78 

Oct-24 92.80 79,389.06 

Nov-24 89.3 79,802.79 

Dec-24 91.89 78,139.01 

Jan-25 91.23 77,500.57 

Feb-25 78.59 73,198.10 

Mar-25 73.10 
77,414.92 

 

(i) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the Directors Report shall explain the 

reason thereof: Not applicable 
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(j) Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents: 

MAS Services Limited 

(CIN: U74899DL1973PLC006950) 

T-34 IInd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase II, 

New Delhi 110020 

Tel: 011-011-26387281-7283, Fax: 011-26387384 

Email: info@masserv.com, investor@masserv.com 

(k) Share transfer system: 

Pursuant to Regulation 40 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, effective from April 1, 2019, transfer of 

shares in physical mode has been discontinued and accordingly the Company has not processed 

transfer of shares in physical mode (except in case of request received for transmission or 

transposition of shares) from the time the said Regulation was applicable and all the transfer of shares 

would be carried out only in dematerialized form by the respective Depository Participants of the 

shareholders.  

Therefore, the shareholders holding shares in physical form are advised to have their shares 

dematerialized at the earliest so that they can transfer them in dematerialized form and participate in 

various corporate actions 

(l) Distribution of Shareholding: 

(i) Shareholding by size as on 31st March, 2025 

Number of Shares No. of 

Shareholders 

% of total 

Shareholders 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

1-5000 8180 99.768 2504636 34.307 

5001-10000 6 0.0731 39102 0.536 

10001-20000 3 0.036 39411 0.540 

20001-30000 3 0.036 81840 1.121 

30001-40000 2 0.243 78309 1.073 

40001-50000 5 0.060 243793 3.338 

50001-100000 3 0.036 185862 2.546 

100001 & Above 3 0.036 4127630 56.538 

mailto:investor@masserv.com
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Total: 8199 100.00 7300583 100 

(ii) Shareholding by category as on 31st March, 2025 

Category of Shareholders Number of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares % of 

Sharehol

ding 

Promoters/Promoter Group    

Individuals 5 3951541 54.13 

Bodies Corporate 1 266730 3.65 

Public    

Bodies Corporate 26 218385 2.99 

Resident Individuals 8093 2708851 37.10 

Non Resident Indians 71 154826 2.12 

Others (Clearing Members) 3 250 0.00342 

Total  7300583 100 

 

(m) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

88.15% of the Company’s shares are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2025, held with both the 

Depositories viz., the National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and the Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (‘CDSL’) and the break-up is as follows: 

 

Form Number of Shares Percentage 

NSDL 4430409 60.69 

CDSL 2005011 27.46 

Physical 865163 11.85 

Total 7300583 100 

 

The company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense 

account. 

(n) Outstanding Employee Stock Options, Global Depository Receipts, American Depository 

Receipts, Warrant, Convertible Instruments & Conversion Date and likely impact on 

Equity: 
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The Company has no outstanding ESOP / GDR / ADR / warrants or any convertible Instruments as of 

March 31, 2025. 

(o) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations is not applicable. 

The details of foreign currency exposure are disclosed in Note to the Annual Financial Statements. The 

Company exports its goods to safeguard the risk Company has Insurance policies.  

(p) Plant locations: 

 

Plant # 1 

 

JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED 

Narela Piao, Manihari Road 

Kundli, Distt- Sonepat, 131028,  

Haryana, India 

 

Plant # 2 

 

JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED 

Plot No. 19 And 67 

NSEZ Noida Gautam Budh Nagar 

Uttar Pradesh -201301, India 

 

(q) Address for correspondence: 

Shareholders can send their correspondence with respect to their shares, dividend, and grievances, if 

any to the Company’s RTA as per contact details provided in S. No. 8(i) above. They can also 

correspond with the Company as per below contact details: 

 

Company’s Registered Office  

 

 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED  

Narela Piao Manihari Road,  

Kundli, Distt- Sonepat, 131028,  

Haryana, India 

Phone: 8814805077 

e-mail: cs@jaganlamps.com 

web: http://www.jaganlamps.com/ 

MAS Services Limited 

T-34 IInd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 

II,New Delhi 110020 

Tel: 011-011-26387281-7283, Fax: 011-

26387384 

Email: investor@masserv.com 

Web: https://www.masserv.com/ 

 

(r) List of all credit ratings obtained along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 

financial year: No credit rating is availed by the Company so far. 

mailto:cs@jaganlamps.com
mailto:investor@masserv.com
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9. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 

conflict with the interests of listed entity at large: 

There was no materially significant Related Party Transactions with the company’s Directors, 

Promoters, and the KMPs, management or their relatives that may have potential conflict with the 

interests of the Company at large during the year under review. All the related party transactions 

entered by the Company during the year were on arm’s length basis. 

(b) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, and strictures imposed on the 

listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the Board or any statutory authority, on any matter 

related to capital markets, during the last three years: 

There was no instance of non–compliance by the Company for any matter related to capital markets 

during the last three years, requiring disclosure under above requirements, except below instance as 

under: 

In continuation to last year statement, this is informed you that the Internal Committee of BSE 

imposed the penalty of Rs. 85,22,397 under under SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated January 22, 2020. The management of the Company 

decided to challenge the BSE decision before the SAT/SEBI. 

(c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no 

personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee: 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees pursuant to section 

177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, to deal with instances of fraud 

and mismanagement and to enable Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns about 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and to report incidents of 

leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information. The said Policy ensures that strict 

confidentiality is maintained in respect of whistle blowers whilst dealing with concerns and also 

specified that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern. The 

mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s) and Employee(s) and 

also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and 

exceptional cases.  The Policy on Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Mechanism is available on the 

website of the Company viz. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regul

ations_2015/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf  

It is affirmed that no person has been denied access to Audit Committee.  

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Disclosures_underRegulation_46_ofSEBI(LODR)_Regulations_2015/Vigil%20Mechanism%20or%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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During the financial year under review, no complaint pertaining to the Company was received under 

the Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 

requirements: 

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: 

Regulation 16 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 defines a ‘material subsidiary a subsidiary, whose income or net 

worth exceeds 10% (ten percent) of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed 

entity and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. 

During the year under review, the Company has no subsidiaries. 

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions: 

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website at the 

link: 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Rela

ted%20Party%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf  

(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: 

The Company not importing commodity and hence commodity price risk & Commodity hedging 

activities not applicable. 

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 

During the period under review, there is no incidence of raising of funds through preferential allotment 

or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of Listing Regulations. 

(i) Certificate from the Company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board 

of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority. 

A certificate from the company secretary in practice confirming that none of the directors on the board 

of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 

the Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, is annexed 

with the CG Report. 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Policy%20on%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20_%20Revised%20on_14.11.2024.pdf
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(j) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board 

which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed 

along with reasons thereof: 

The Board of Directors of the Company accepted the recommendations of its Committees, wherever 

made, during the year. 

(k) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated 

basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which 

the statutory auditor is a part which are part of this Annual Report. 

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in notes of the Financial Statements of 

this Annual Report. 

(l) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

a. Number of complaints received during the financial year: NIL 
b. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year: NA as NIL Complaint 

c. Number of complaints pending for more than 90 days: NIL 

d. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL 

 

(m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of Loans and advances in the nature of 

loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount. 

There is no such Loan or Advance extended by the Company or its subsidiaries to any firms/ 

companies in which directors are interested. 

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity including the date and place of 

incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 

subsidiaries:  

Not Applicable as the Company has no Subsidiaries. Further, the requirement of Regulation 24 of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations does not apply to the Company. 

10. Non-compliance of any requirements of corporate governance report of sub–para (2) to (10) of 

Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations. 

The Company has complied with all requirements of corporate governance report of sub–para (2) to (10) 

of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations. 
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11. Disclosure of compliance with requirement of the Corporate Governance/non-compliance 

Company has adhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance specified in regulation 

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

12. Disclosure in addition to Part C of Schedule V of Listing Regulations 

(a) Code of Conduct: 

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management 

of the Company. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code%20of%20Cond

uct%20for%20Board%20of%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel%20-

%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf  

All the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed 

compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them during the year ended March 31, 2025. 

The Annual Report of the Company contains declaration duly signed by the Managing Director. 

(b) Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance: 

The Company has obtained the certificate from its Secretarial Auditors regarding compliance with the 

provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid down in SEBI Listing Regulations and annexed with 

this CG report and form integral part of Annual Report. The Company has generally complied with the 

requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. 

Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account– Not 

applicable. 

(c) Disclosure of certain type of agreements binding listed entities: 

There is no such nature of agreements exist or executed as defined under clause 5A of paragraph A of 

Part A of Schedule III of Listing Regulations. 

 

 

 

 

Date: 05.09.2025 

Place: Kundli, Haryana 

For and on Behalf of the Board  

For Jagan Lamps Limited 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01837337 

 

https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Board%20of%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Board%20of%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf
https://legacy.jaganlamps.com/assets/Website_Data/Corporate_Governance/Policies/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Board%20of%20Directors%20and%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel%20-%20revised_08.03.2025.pdf
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CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

[Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 read with Part B of Schedule II] 

To, 

The Board of Directors of Jagan Lamps Limited 

 

We, Ashish Aggarwal, Managing Director and Rekha Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer of Jagan Lamps 

Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that; 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the quarter and year ended 31st 

March, 2025, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity 

during the above stated year ended which are fraudulent, illegal or vio 

C. lative of the listed entity’s code of conduct. 

C. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to 

financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the 

design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that have taken 

or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D.    We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 

(1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the period, if any; 

(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the quarter and that the same have been disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements, if any; and 

(3) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 

the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system 

over financial reporting. 

For Jagan Lamps Limited 

Sd/-       Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal      Rekha Aggarwal               

Managing Director                      Chief Financial Officer 

DIN- 01837337                   DIN- 07887630 

Date: 05.09.2025 | Place: Kundli, Haryana 
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Declaration of Compliance with Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management 

 

To 

The Members  

Jagan Lamps Limited 

 

This is to certify that as per the provisions of Regulation 26 and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and 

the Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2025.  

 

  

 

 

Date: 05.09.2025 

Place: Kundli, Haryana 

 

For Jagan Lamps Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN:01837337 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members of 

Jagan Lamps Limited 

CIN: L31501HR1993PLC033993 

Narela Piao - Manihari Road, Kundli,  

District - Sonipat, Haryana - 131028, India. 

 

We, Mehak Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, 

returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Jagan Lamps Limited having CIN: 

L31501HR1993PLC033993 and having registered office at Narela Piao-Manihari Road, Kundli, District-Sonipat, 

Haryana-131028, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the 

purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 

10(i) of the Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to us by the Company & its officers. We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the financial year ending on March 31,  2025, have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies  by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority . 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company 

1. Ashish Aggarwal 01837337 April 01, 1994 

2. Hemant Mangla1 08185951 July 25, 2018 

3. Saras Kumar 08202088 August 14, 2018 

4. Rekha Aggarwal 07887630 August 13, 2019 

5. Shweta Nathani 09156909 May 03, 2021 

6. Raghav Aggarwal 09131499 May 03, 2021 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of 

the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Mehak Gupta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/-   

Mehak Gupta 

Proprietor 

Membership No.: FCS-10703 

COP No.: 15013 

Peer Review No.: 1643/2022 

UDIN: F010703G001073468 

 

Place: New Delhi        

Date: August 25, 2025 

 
 

                                                           
1 Mr. Hemant Mangla has resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. July 24, 2025. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para E of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

To, 

The Members of  

Jagan Lamps Limited 

CIN: L31501HR1993PLC033993 

Narela Piao – Manihari Road,  

Kundli Distt. Sonipat, Haryana - 131028, India. 

 

We have examined all the relevant records of Jagan Lamps Limited for the purpose of certifying compliance of the 

conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. We have obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification. 

 

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 

limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

conditions of the corporate governance. 

 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information furnished to us, 

we certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the period ended March 

31, 2025. 

 

For Mehak Gupta & Associates  

Company Secretaries  

 

Sd/- 

Mehak Gupta 

Proprietor 

FCS No: 10703 

C.P No. 15013 

Peer Review No.: 1643/2022                                                                                                      Place: New Delhi 

UDIN: F010703G001073512                                                                                              Date: August 25, 2025 
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To The Members of 

Jagan Lamps Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS standalone financial statements of Jagan Lamps Limited, which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a 

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind 

AS standalone financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind 

AS standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 

(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 

on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS 

financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters.  

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/mca-notifies-roadmap-applicability-indian-accounting-standards-ind.html
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statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 

work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 

to report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 
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(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements 

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 

work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 

Ind AS financial statements. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of the 

most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of The Companies Act 2013, we give in the 

Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

2. A.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(B)(vi) 

below, on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income), Statement of 

changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of account. 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015 as amended. 
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e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f. The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 

stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(B)(vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 
B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

 

ii) The Company does not have any long-term contracts requiring a provision for material foreseeable 

losses. 

 

iii) The Company does not have any amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education    
  and Protection Fund. 

 

iv)   
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 

notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 
notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under subclause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 
 

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 
 

vi)  Based on our examination, which included test checks, except for the instance mentioned below, the 
Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility in respect of the 
application and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in 

the respective software.  

 
The PPE (Property, Plant and Equipment) software used by the company did not have an audit trail 
feature enabled, consequently, there was no audit trail maintained for transactions recorded within this 
particular software for the whole year. 
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 Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the 

year for respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tampered with during the course of our audit and the audit trail has been preserved by the 

Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 
 

C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit 
laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 

details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 
 

 

For KASG & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 002228C 

 

                     Sd/- 

Vipin Goel                                          Place: Delhi 

(Proprietor)                             Date: 30.05.2025 

Membership Number: 512694 

UDIN: 25512694BMKPWF5433 
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Auditors’ Report 
 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our 

Report of even date. 

(i)  

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”).  

 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records Intangible Assets. 

 

(b) To be best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the verification of Property, 

Plant and Equipment has been conducted by the management during the year. All the Property, Plant and 

Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year, however, there is a regular 

phased programme of physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the title deeds of immovable 

properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 

executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements are held in the name of the 

Company. 

 

(d) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not 

revalued its property, plant, and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the year. 

Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a 

Register Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net 

carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right Of Use Assets) or intangible Assets 

does not arise. 

 

(e) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, no proceedings have been 

initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 

Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii)  

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals during the 

year. 

 

(b) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has 

been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate, during the year, from banks on 

the basis of security of current assets, however as represented by the management no quarterly returns or 

statements were filed by the company with bank. 

 
(iii) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that the Company, during the 

year under audit, has not made any investment, has not provided guarantee or security or granted any advances 

in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other 

parties; however, has made investments in other Company’s securities. 

 

(a) The Company has not granted any loans or ‘advances in the nature of loans’, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, and/or provided any guarantee or 
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security to any other entity. Accordingly, the requirements to report under paragraph 3(iii)(a) (A) & (B) of 

the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(b) There are no investments made, no guarantees provided or security given by the Company. 

 

(c) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, the requirements 

to report under Paragraph 3(iii)(c), (d), (e) & (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(iv) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not given 

any loans, made any investment or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 & 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the provisions of paragraph (iv) are not applicable to the company. 

 

(v) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 

account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 

76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the 

requirements to report under Paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vi) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the maintenance of cost 

records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the requirements to report under 

Paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vii)  

(a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the company is regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Service Tax, Cess and 

other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 

amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, 

duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax (VAT), goods & services tax, cess and other statutory dues as 

applicable were in arrears as at 31st March’2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they 

become payable. 

 

(b) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, there are no dues of 

service tax, income tax, goods & services tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute.  

 

(viii) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, there were no transactions 

in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the requirements to report under 

paragraph 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(ix) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, 

 

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowings taken from financial institution or bank. 

We have been informed that the company did not have any debenture outstanding during the year. 

 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
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(c) The Company has not availed any term loans during the year under audit. 

 

(d) There were no funds raised on short term basis during the year, which have, prima facie, been used for 

long-term purposes by the Company. 

 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or Joint Venture as defined under the Companies Act, 

2013 and therefore, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company. 

 

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as 

defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(ix)(f) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(x) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, 

 

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) and accordingly, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report under Paragraph 3(x)(b) of 

the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

 

(xi) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

 

(a) Neither any fraud by the Company, nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 

course of the audit; nor we have been informed of any such case by the Company. 

 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors 

in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government. 

 
(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report). 

 

(xii) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company is not a Nidhi 

Company. Accordingly, requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(xiii) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the transactions with 

related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and 

the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required 

by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

 

(xiv)  

(a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, though the Company is 

required to have an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the internal audit 

system commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the Company. 

 

 



 

Annual Report 2024-25 [88] 
 

Financial Statements 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued for the year under audit. 

 
(xv) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, 

reporting on the compliance of the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 

the Company. 

 

(xvi) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, 

 

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

Accordingly, requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance-activities during the year 

accordingly, requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 

Bank of India. Accordingly, requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (c) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

(d) The Group does not have any CICs, which are a part of the Group. We have not, however, separately 

evaluated whether the information provided by the Management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, 

requirements to report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report 

under Paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xix) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 

other information accompanying the Ind AS Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 

come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 

report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that 

our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

(xx) To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, the provisions of section 

135 (5) of the Companies Act is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the requirements to report under 

Paragraph 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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(xxi) The provisions of clauses 3(xxi) of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

For KASG & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 002228C 

 

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel                               Place: Delhi 

(Proprietor)                               Date: 30.05.2025 

Membership Number: 512694 

UDIN: 25512694BMKPWF5433 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Jagan Lamps Limited (“the Company”) 

as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year 

ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 

financial statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st  March 2025, 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For KASG & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 002228C 

 

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel                                Place: Delhi 

(Proprietor)                                Date: 30.05.2025 

Membership Number: 512694 

UDIN: 25512694BMKPWF5433 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025    

        (Rs. In Lakhs) 

    Note  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

Assets 
    Non-current Assets 

   Property, plant & equipment 3 1,679.66 1,778.82  

Other Intangible Assets 
 

0.80 1.29  

Financial Assets 
 

 
 Other Financial Assets 4 29.82 24.51  

   
1,710.28 1,804.62 

Current Assets 
 

   

Inventories 5 2,340.95 1,149.86  

Financial Assets 
 

   

(i) Trade Receivables 6 1,038.61 944.92  

(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 7 33.80 16.15  

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8 20.17 20.03  

(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 1.19 1.43  

Other Current Assets 10 186.95 299.78  

   
3,621.68 2432.18 

Total     5,331.96 4,236.80 

Equity and Liabilities 
 

 
 Equity 

  
   

Equity Share Capital 11 729.52 729.52  

Other Equity 12 2,598.75 2,299.21 

   
3,328.27 3,028.74 

Liabilities 
 

   

Non-current Liabilities 
 

   

Financial Liabilities 
 

   

Provisions 13 14.28 32.18  

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 14 178.18 177.87  

   
192.46 210.05 

Current Liabilities 
 

   

Financial Liabilities 
 

   

(i) Borrowings 15 947.60 547.24 

(ii) Trade Payables 16    
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

 
0.22 -  

total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

 
680.87 311.64  

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 108.83 116.21  

Other Current Liabilities 18 69.38 14.36  

Provisions 19 4.12 6.70  

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 0.23 1.86  

   
1,811.23 998.01 

Total     5,331.96 4,236.80 

 

Significant accounting policies                                 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements (As per our report of even date attached)  

 

For KASG & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FIRN: 002228C  

  

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel  

(Partner)  

Membership Number: 512694  

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30.05.2025   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
         Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal  

Managing Director 

DIN: 01837337  

 

 

 
Sd/- 
Rekha Aggarwal  

Director & CFO  

DIN: 07887630  

 

Sd/- 

Pratyus Kumar 

Company Secretary 

M. No.: ACS 40171  
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025 
       (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
Note 

     For the year ended 
            31 March 2025 

   For the year ended 
         31 March 2024 

Revenue 
   

Revenue from Operations 21 4,979.72 5,117.23  
Other Income 22 58.65 68.11  

Total Income   5,038.38 5,185.34   

Expenses 
 

 
 Cost of Material Consumed 23 3,826.42 3,838.13  

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (174.42)  (61.15) 

Employee benefits expense 25 448.08 496.90  

Finance Costs 26 93.43 21.91  

Depreciation and amortization expense 3 138.75 135.14  

Other expenses 27 330.53 361.66  

Total Expenses   4,662.79 4,792.59  

Profit Before Tax 
 

375.59 392.75  

Tax expense 
 

 
 Current Tax 

 
96.80 101.66  

Earlier year taxes 
 

0.08  (0.80) 

Deferred Tax 
 

(5.01)  (1.79) 

  
91.87 99.07  

Profit / (loss) for the year 
 

283.72 293.68  

  
 

 Other Comprehensive Income 
 

 
 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

 
 

 Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 
 

21.13 3.23  
Income tax relating to re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit 
obligations (5.32)  (0.76) 

  
   

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net oftax)   15.81 2.27  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
(comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for 
the year)   299.53 

                        
295.96 

Earnings per equity share 
 

 
 Basic 

 
3.89 4.02  

Diluted 
 

3.89 4.02  

 

Significant accounting policies  2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements (As per our report of even date attached)  

 

For KASG & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FIRN: 002228C  

  

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel  

(Partner)  

Membership Number: 512694  

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30.05.2025   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal  

Managing Director  

DIN: 01837337  

 

 
 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal  

Director & CFO  

DIN: 07887630  

 
Sd/- 

Pratyus Kumar 

Company Secretary  

M. No.: ACS 40171  
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

 
 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

  
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2025  
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2024  

Cash flow from Operating Activities   
  Profit for the Year   375.59 392.75 

Adjustments for    
 Depreciation & Amortisation expenses   138.75 135.14 

Interest expense   88.26 19.51 

Interest income   (0.75) (0.10) 

Non Cash / Non-Operating items   226.26 154.55 

Adjustment for    
 Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories   (1,191.09) (217.79) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivable   (93.69) (23.91) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non-Current financial assets   (5.31) (6.64) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial assets   0.24 (0.18) 

Decrease / (Increase) in other current assets   112.83 (232.61) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables   369.44 126.77 

Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities   (7.39) 6.01 

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions   0.64 7.57 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities   55.02 (117.91) 

Net Change in current assets and current liabilities   (759.32) (458.69) 

Less:- Direct Taxes Paid   98.50 110.66 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activity (A+B-C-D)   (255.97) (22.05) 

Cash flow from Investing Activities    
 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset   (39.09) (26.88) 

Interest Received on FDR   0.75 0.10 

Increase of Bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (0.13) (1.98) 

Net Cash Flow from Investing activities  II  (38.48) (28.76) 

Cash flow from Financing Activities    
 Receipt of Calls in Arrears   - - 

(Repayment)/ proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)   400.36 (39.77) 

Payment of Final Dividend   - - 

Interest Paid   (88.26) (19.51) 

Net Cash Flow from Financing activities  III  312.10 (59.28) 

Net Cash Flow   (I+II+III)   17.65 (110.09) 

Add:- Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent   16.15 126.24 

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent   33.80 16.15 

Cash on hand   7.93 3.03 

Balance with Banks    
 - in Current Account   0.03 1.23 

- in EEFC Account   25.85 11.89 

 
  33.80 16.15 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated). 

 
1. Corporate Information 

 

Jagan Lamps Limited (or ‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India and 

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 8th January 1993. The Company is 

primarily engaged in the manufacturing of Auto Bulb & Halogen Lamp and Electric Bikes. 

 

2. Significant accounting policies 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. 
 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and going concern basis and historical 
cost convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and certain items which 

have been measured at fair values as required under the relevant Ind AS. 
 

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh 
rupees with two decimal points except where otherwise stated. 

 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

a. Property, plant and equipment 
 

Recognition and Measurement 

Company has elected recognize all its property, plant and equipment in the financial statements at 

cost. 
 

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes its purchase price, non-refundable taxes, 

duties or levies, any other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for 
its intended use, the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-

term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based 

on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in 

the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The 

present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the 
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

 
That being the first year of operation, the initial expenses particularly pertaining to the plant set up 

period have been capitalized to the cost of the plant and machinery. 
 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized 

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset 
is derecognised. 
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The Company does not adjust exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term 

foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of the 

asset but charges the same to the statement of profit & loss in the year in which such gain/loss 

arises. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between 

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement 

of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, 

net of their residual values, over the estimated useful lives. The identified components are depreciated 

over their useful life, the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. 

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of the lease which ranges between 

89-99 years. 

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation which coincides with the rates 

indicated in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on its fixed assets./ 

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management 

(Years) 

Factory Buildings 30 years 

Plant and Machinery 25 years 

Office Equipment 15 years 

Computers (Servers and networks) 3 years 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years 

Vehicles 8 years 

 

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by technical experts, 

professionals, the useful lives of the following classes of assets: 

 

•  Computers (Servers and networks) are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 3 years, 

which is lower than those indicated in schedule II. 

 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate 

 

b. Intangible assets 
 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses. 

 

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the 

related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
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           The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 

reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 

expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 

modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 

estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and 

loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or 

at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 

whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite 

to finite is made prospective basis. 

 

- Technical knowhow  

 
Amounts paid towards technical know-how fees for specifically identified projects/products being 

development expenditure incurred towards product design is carried forward based on assessment of 

benefits arising from such expenditure. Such expenditure is amortised over the period of expected 

future sales from the related product, i.e. the estimated period of 60 to 72 months on straight line 

basis based on past trends, commencing from the month of commencement of commercial 

production. 

 

- Software 
 

Software purchased by the Company are amortised on a straight line basis in five years. 

 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 

c. Leases 

 

As a Lessee 

The Company has lease contracts for offices. 

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or 

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 

in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (2) 

the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the 

lease, and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding lease 

liability for all lease arrangements under which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. 

For short-term leases and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate 
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the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is 

reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 

underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The 

estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and 

equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted 

for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, and the Company’s incremental 

borrowing rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments (including in 

substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a 

residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised. Subsequent to 

initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. 

d. Borrowing Costs 

 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 

arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. 

 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized 

as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they 

are incurred. 

 

e. Impairment of non-financial assets 
 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 

Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of 

an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying 

amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 

written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions 

are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
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used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly 

traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 

remaining useful life. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which 

are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. 

These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a 

long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To 

estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the 

Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for 

subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not 

exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in 

which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in 

the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation 

surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of 

any previous revaluation surplus. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that 

previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, 

the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment 

loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s 

recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the 

carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss 

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a 

revaluation increase. 

f. Inventories 

 

Inventories which includes raw materials, components, stores, work in progress, finished goods and 

spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items 

held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products 

in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

 

 Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as 

follows: 

 

 Raw materials and components: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw material, 
components, stores and spares is determined on first in, first out basis. 

 
 Finished goods and work in progress: At Cost 

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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g. Foreign currencies 

 

  Functional and presentational currency 

Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s 

functional currency. 

Transactions and balances 

  

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot 

rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at 

the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are 

recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair 

value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 

determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is 

treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., 

translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or the statement of 

profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or the statement of profit and loss, respectively). 

h. Revenue recognition 
 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 

contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

government.  

 

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax 

collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it 

is excluded from revenue. 

 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 

 

Sale of goods 

The Company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when 

‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the 

customer.  

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows: 

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer  

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract  

Step 3: Determine the transaction price  
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Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 

discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as 

specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. 

Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is 

unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 

Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues. 

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and 

requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, 

basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction 

price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for 

existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for use of significant judgments in revenue 

recognition: 

a) The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer products to a customer. 

 

The Company assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance 

obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to 

determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such 

deliverables. 

 

b) Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price 

could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such 

as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The 

transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a 

significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the 

transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The 

estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that 

it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not 

occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of 

variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable 

evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations. 

 

c) The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 

obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of 

the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. 

 

d) The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a 

point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer 

consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or 

existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product 

or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the 

customer, etc. 
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Rendering of services 

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion 

of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys 

of work performed. 

Job work and development charges are recognized upon full completion of the job work and 

development services and when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 

been passed to the buyer, on delivery of the goods and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 

collection of the consideration. 

Interest income 

 

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other 

comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the 

rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of 

the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the 

financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest 

rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the 

financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not 

consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

 

i. Fair value measurement 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 

best interest. 

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 

on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 

value hierarchy as explained above.  

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in 

the relevant notes. 

 Significant estimates and assumptions  
 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy  

 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)  

 

j. Current versus non-current classification 

 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle (the 

company considers 12 month period as normal operating cycle). 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period. 

 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle (the company considers 12 month period 

as normal operating cycle). 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 
 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 

in cash and cash equivalents.  

k. Taxes 

 

Current income tax 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 

or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 

that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 

loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

 

Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. That the company 

is still in initial stage of commencement and is making all efforts to procure orders and is working out 

possible business opportunities in the local market. Following the prudence norms, the management 

has not recognized any deferred tax on the unused tax losses during the financial year under 

consideration. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 

the deferred tax asset to be utilised.  

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 

recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation 

to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 

entity and the same taxation authority. 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current 

tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., 

the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company 

recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit 

Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is 

created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” 

The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the 

asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during 

the specified period. 

l. Earnings per share 
 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of 

bonus issue, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 

corresponding change in resources.  

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 

to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

m. Provisions 

 

General provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

When the  

 

Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the expense relating to a provision is 

presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 

Contingent Liability 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 

control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that 

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 
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extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be 

measured reliably. 

 

n. Retirement and other employee benefits 

 

Short term employee benefits: 

 

All employee benefits due wholly within twelve months of rendering of services are classified as short 

term employee benefits. Benefits like salaries, wages, leave salary, contribution to Provident Fund/ 

Employee State Insurance contributions etc. paid or payable during the reporting period and the 

expected bonus expense are recognised as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the period in 

which the employee renders the related service. 

 

Long term employee benefits: 

 

The company has a policy of not providing & paid long term compensated absences. 

 

Post -employment benefits: 

 

i) Defined Contribution Plan 

 
The State governed Provident Fund Scheme, Employees' State Insurance Scheme and 

Employees Pension Scheme are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, 

other than the contribution payable to the Provident Fund Scheme, Employees' State Insurance 

Scheme and Employees Pension Scheme. The contribution paid /payable under the schemes is 

recognised as an expense during the period in which employee renders the related service. 

 

ii) Defined Benefit Plan 

 

The Company's Gratuity is Defined Benefit Retirement Plan. The Company’s liability towards 

Gratuity is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of 

service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement. 

 

The liability is provided based on actuarial valuation certified by consulting actuary. The 

Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset 

or liability. Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 

ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and the 

return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 

liability) relating to retirement benefit plans are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

which are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

 

o. Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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Financial asset 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 

of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 

time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

 

 Debt instruments at amortised cost 

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

contractual cash flows, and 
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the 

profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category 

generally applies to trade and other receivables. Company has recognized financial assets viz. 

security deposit, trade receivables, employee advances at amortised cost. 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI 

 

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 

selling the financial assets, and 
b. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 

reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income 

(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign 

exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 
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recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 

instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

However there are no instruments which have been classified under this category. 

Debt instrument at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 

criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 

amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so 

reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting 

mismatch’).  

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognized in the P&L. 

 

Equity investments 

 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 

are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination 

to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company 

may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other 

comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 

the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from 

OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 

loss within equity. 

For equity instruments which are included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value and 

company has to recognize all changes in the P&L. 

 

Derecognition 

 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 

 

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 

a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards 

of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 
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of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred 

asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 

recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 

basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 

the Company could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 

exposure: 

 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, 

advances and bank balance. 
b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115. 

c. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL. 
 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 

receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 

from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for 

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 

allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance 

with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), 

discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and 

similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when 
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is 

required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument. 
 

 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 
contractual terms. 
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 

expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other 

expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described 

below: 

 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is 

presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the 

balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off 
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

 

 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the 
balance sheet, i.e. asa liability. 

 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial 

instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an 

analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., 

financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 

effective hedge, as appropriate. 

 

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 

bank overdrafts. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 

near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company 

that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 

Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 

effective hedging instruments. 

 

The company does not have any financial liabilities designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. 

 

Derecognition 

 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 

or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
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substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 

a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 

profit or loss. 

             Reclassification of financial assets 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if 

there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model 

are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the 

business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s 

operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.  

 

A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an 

activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 

next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

p. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and cheques on 

hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank, 

cash on hand and cheques on hand as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 

management. 

 

q. Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent 

 

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution 

is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate 

laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding 

amount is recognised directly in equity. 

 

2.3   Implementation of New/Modified Standards 
 

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made amendments to the existing 

standards. The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the 

Company. Further, MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company. 
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Statement of changes in equity for the year 
ended March 31, 2025         

                

I)  Equity Share Capital             

                

  Particulars          Rs. In Lakhs  

  Balance as on March 31, 2023         729.52 

  
Changes in equity share capital 
during the year         

                             
-  

  Balance as on March 31, 2024         729.52  

  
Changes in equity share capital 
during the year         

                                  
-    

  Balance as on March 31, 2025         729.52  

                

II)  Other Equity             

             Rs. In Lakhs  

  

Particulars 

Reserves and surplus   

  

Capital 
reserve 

General 
reserve 

Securities 
Premium 

Retained 
earnings 

Re-
measuremen
t on defined 

benefit 
obligations 

Total 

  
Balance as on March 31, 
2023 - - - 172.75 1,832.93 (2.42) 

  Profit for the year 
   

293.68 - 293.68 

  Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 
 

- - 
 

2.27 

  Final Dividend paid 
  

- - - - 

  
Addition on issue of equity 

shares   
- - - 

- 

  
Balance as on March 31, 
2024 - - 172.75 2,126.61 (0.15) 2,299.21 

  Profit for the year 
  

- 283.72 - 283.72 

  
Other comprehensive income 
(net of tax)   

 
- 

 
- 

 
15.81 15.81 

  Final Dividend paid 
  

- - - - 

  
Addition on issue of equity 
shares   

- - - 
- 

  
Balance as on March 31, 
2025 - - 172.75 2,410.34 15.66 2,598.75 

 

For KASG & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FIRN: 002228C  

  

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel  

(Partner)  

Membership Number: 

512694  

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30.05.2025   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal  

Managing Director  

DIN: 01837337  

 

 

 
 
Sd/- 
Rekha Aggarwal  

Director & CFO  

DIN: 07887630  

 

Sd/- 

Pratyus Kumar 

Company Secretary  

M. No.: ACS 40171  



 
 

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.) 
 

Annual Report 2024-25 [112] 
 

Financial Statements 

Property, Plant and Equipment Schedule for the period ended 31st March, 2025 
      

 Particulars  Land Building 

Plant & 
Equipment

s 
Vehicle

s 

Furniture 
and 

fixtures 
Compute

rs Total 
Softwar

e Software 

Total 
Intangibl
e Assets 

Total 
Assets 

Gross Block 
           

As on March 31, 2022 146.88 949.49 2,314.93 60.83 16.90 13.20 3,502.23 4.52 0.05 4.56 3,506.79 

Additions - - 87.47 - - 2.43 89.90 - - - 89.90 

Disposals - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2023 146.88 949.49 2,402.40 60.83 16.90 15.63 3,592.12 4.52 0.05 4.56 3,596.69 

Additions - - 24.65 - - 2.23 26.88 - - - 26.88 

Disposals - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2024 146.88 949.49 2,427.05 60.83 16.90 17.86 3,619.00 4.52 0.05 4.56 3,623.56 

Additions - - 6.63 31.66 - 0.81 39.09451 - - - 39.09 

Disposals - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2025 146.88 949.49 2,433.68 92.49 16.90 18.67 3,658.10 4.52 0.05 4.56 3,662.66 

Accumulated Depreciation 

           
As on March 31, 2022 - 263.07 1,249.90 30.18 15.89 12.09 1,571.12 2.08 0.05 2.13 1,573.25 

Depreciation expense - 31.53 94.66 7.22 0.15 0.94 134.49 0.57 - 0.57 135.06 

Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2023 - 294.60 1,344.55 37.41 16.03 13.02 1,705.61 2.65 0.05 2.70 1,708.31 

Depreciation expense - 31.62 93.79 7.24 0.15 1.77 134.56 0.57 - 0.57 135.14 

Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2024 - 326.22 1,438.34 44.65 16.18 14.79 1,840.18 3.22 0.05 3.27 1,843.45 

Depreciation expense - 31.53 94.43 10.36 0.15 1.79 138.26 0.49 - 0.49 138.75 

Eliminated on disposal of assets - - - - - - - - - - - 

As on March 31, 2025 - 357.75 1,532.77 55.02 16.32 16.58 1,978.44 3.72 0.05 3.76 1,982.20 

Net Block 
           

As on March 31, 2025 146.88 591.74 900.71 37.47 0.58 2.08 1,679.66 0.80 - 0.80 1,680.46 

As on March 31, 2024 146.88 623.27 988.71 16.18 0.72 3.06 1,778.82 1.29 - 1.29 1,780.12 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2025 

 
  

 (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

 
Financial Assets 

      
4 Other Financial Assets 

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 

Security Deposits 
    

29.82 24.51 

      
29.82  24.51  

        

        
5 Inventories  

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 

(valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value) 

     

 

Raw Material, Stores Spares Gases and 
Packing material 

   

                  
1,842.51  

                  
825.84  

 
Finished Goods 

    
424.76  258.61 

 
Work in Progress 

    
73.69  65.42 

      
2,340.95  1,149.86 

 

Note: a) Inventories are taken as quantified, valued and certified by the 
management. 

  

        
6 Trade Receivables 

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 
Considered good, Secured 

    
-    -    

 
Considered good, Unsecured 

    
1,040.49  946.80  

 

Less: Provision for Doubtful 
Debts 

    

                    
(1.89) 

                    
(1.89) 

        

 

Trade  Receivables  which  have  significant  increase  
in  credit  risk  

  

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

Trade Receivables  –  credit 
impaired 

    

                         
-    

                          
-    

      
1,038.61  944.92 

 

Balance of Trade Receivables are subject to Confirmation from the Respective 
Parties 

  

 
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025       

  Particulars  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 

 Less 
than 6 
months  

 6 
months 
-1 year  

 1-2 
Years  

 2-3 
years  

 More than 
3 years  

Total 

 

i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables — considered 
good  

          
1,032.09  

              
0.15  

              
4.89  

                  
0.14    

                      
3.22  

                   
1,040.49  

 

 ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables — considered 

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    
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good  

 

 v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables — which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 vi) Disputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

  
1,032.09  00.15  4.86  0.14   3.22  1,040.49  

 

 
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024 
       

 
 Particulars  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 

 Less 

than 6 
months  

 6 

months 
-1 year  

 1-2 

Years  

 2-3 

years  

 More than 

3 years  
Total 

 

i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables — considered 
good  

          
936.83  

              
5.63  

              
1.12  

                  
-    

                      
3.22  

                   
946.80  

 

 ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 iv) Disputed Trade 
receivables — considered 
good  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables — which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

 

 vi) Disputed Trade 
Receivables — credit 
impaired  

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                  
-    

                         
-    

                          
-    

  
936.83  5.63  1.12  -    3.22  946.80  

        
7 

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024 

 
Cash on hand 

    
7.93  3.03  

 
Balance with Banks 

      

 
 - in Current Account 

    
0.03  1.23  

 
 - in EEFC Account 

    
25.85  11.89  

      
25.87  13.12 

      
33.80  16.15 

        
8 Other Bank Balances 

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 

In current account for Equity 
Dividend 

    
18.02 18.03 

 
Fixed deposit with banks 

    
2.15 2.00 

      
20.17 20.03 
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9 Other Financial Assets 
   

 March 31, 2025  
 March 31, 

2024  

 

Interest accrued but not due 
on deposits 

    

                      
0.07  

                      
0.07  

 
Advance to Employees 

    
1.12  1.36  

      
1.19  1.43  

        
10 Other Current Assets 

   
 March 31, 2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 

Advance to suppliers 
/contractors 

    
19.06 248.41 

 
Prepaid Expenses 

    
7.45 6.27 

 

Balance with 
Government Authorities 

      

 
Drawback receivable 

    
2.54 4.24 

 
Other Recoverable 

    
0.14 0.26 

 
GST Recoverable 

    
157.75 40.61 

      
186.95  299.78 

 

11 Share Capital       
 March 

31, 2025  
 March 

31, 2024  

  Equity Share Capital           

  Authorised 
   

    

  
90,00,000 (P.Y. 90,00,000) Equity Share of Rs.10/- 
each     900.00  900.00  

          
                

900.00  
                

900.00  

              

  Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 
       73,00,583 (P.Y. 73,00,583) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up   730.06 730.06 

  Less: Calls in Arrears (Others)       0.54 0.54 

          
                

729.52  
                

729.52  

              

  
Reconciliation of the equity shares at the 
beginning and at the end of the year           

  Particulars   
As on  

March 31, 2025 
As on  

March 31, 2024 

      
No. of 
Shares 

Rs. Lakhs 
No. of 
Shares 

Rs. 
Lakhs 

  

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 

year   

          

73,00,583  

                      

729.52  

             

73,00,583 

                  

729.52 

  Call Received during the year   -  -  -  - 

  Shares issued during the year*   -  -  - - 

  Shares bought back during the year   -  -  -  -  

  
Shares outstanding at the end of the 
year   73,00,583  729.52  73,00,583  729.52  
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 Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares 
 

  

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share, where voting is held by electronic voting / ballot paper. In case of 
Poll, each holder of equity share is entitled to number of votes against number of shares held. 

  

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the equity share holder. 

  

* The Board of Directors of the Company has approved allotment of 1,38,783 fully paid up equity shares 
having a face value of Rs.10 each on November 14, 2022 pursuant to conversion of 73,000 Compulsory 
Convertible Debentures (CCD's) having a face value of Rs.100 each at a conversion price of Rs. 52.60 per 
equity share, including premium of Rs.42.60 per equity share. Consequent to this allotment the paid-up-equity 
share capital of the company stands increased to Rs. 729.52 lakhs in the previous year. 

  
 

          

  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company     
              

  Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up  31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

    
No of 

Shares  
% of 

Holding 
No of 

Shares  
% of 

Holding 

  Mr. Ashish Aggarwal  
          

33,47,028  45.85% 
             

33,47,028  45.85% 

  Ms Rekha Aggarwal 
            

5,13,872  7.04% 
               

5,13,872  7.04% 

 

 
Shareholding of Promoters as under: 
           

Name of the 
Promoter 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 % change 
during the 

year 
No. of Shares % of total 

shares 
No. of Shares % of total 

shares 
Mr. Ashish 
Aggarwal  

 

33,47,028 45.85 % 33,47,028 45.85 % 0.00 

Mrs Gita 
Singla 

 

77,020 1.05 % 77,020 1.05 % 0.00 

Ms Rekha 
Aggarwal 

 

5,13,872 7.04 % 5,13,872 7.04 % 0.00 

Ms. Sikha 
Gupta 

13,611 0.19 % 13,611 0.19 % 0.00 

Mr. Chandra 
Shekhar 

10 0.00 % 10 0.00 % 0.00 

M/s Jagan 
Automotives 
Private 
Limited 

2,66,730 3.65 % 2,66,730 3.65 % 0.00 

12 Other Equity       

 
 

 March 
31, 2025  

 
 
 

 March 
31, 2024  
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  Securities Premium           
  Opening Balance       172.75  172.75  
  Add: Addition on issue of equity shares       0.00 0.00 

  Closing Balance       172.75  172.75  

              
  Retained Earnings           

  Opening Balance       2,126.61  1,832.93  

  
Add : Net Profit after tax transferred 
fromStatement of Profit & Loss       283.72  293.68  

  Less: Final Dividend paid       -    -    

  Closing Balance Surplus       2,410.34  2,126.61 

  
 

       

  

 
Re-measurement on defined benefit 
obligations         

  Opening Balance        (0.15)  (2.42) 

 

Add: Other comprehensive income (net of 
tax)       15.81 2.27 

          15.66  -0.15 

  Total       2,426.00  2,126.47 

  Grand Total       2,598.75  2,299.21 

 

  Non Financial Liabilities (Non-Current)         

13 Provisions      March 31, 2025     March 31, 2024  

  Provision for employee benefits         

  Provision for gratuity     14.28   32.18 

        14.28   32.18 

              

14 Deffered Tax Liabilities (net)      March 31, 2025     March 31, 2024  

  Deferred tax liabilites           

   - Depreciation &amortisation     186.74   191.80 

        186.74   191.80 

  Deferred tax assets           

   - Employee Benefits     5.71   11.09 

   - Others     2.84   2.84 

        8.56   13.93 

  Minimum alternative tax credit     -    
 

-    

        
                                    

-      
                                    

-    

  
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) at the end of the 
year 178.18    

                          
177.87 

              

              

15 Current Borrowings      March 31, 2025     March 31, 2024  

  

 
Unsecured considered good, Repayable on 
demand *         

   - from directors                                 -    
                                    

228.65     

  Foreign Currency loan from bank PCFC (secured)   -   135.72 

  Cash credit from banks (secured)**   947.60   182.87 
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947.60    
                                

547.24 

 

**Terms & Conditions 

 

      Total Overdraft Funded faclity of Rs.1700 lakhs has been sanctioned which includes: 

 

1. Total Overdraft Funded faclity of Rs.1300 lakhs has been sanctioned which includes: 

1a. Short Term Loan of upto Rs.1040 Lakhs to meet the working capital requirements with interest 2.2% 

spread per annum over 3 month MIBOR. 

1b. Import Letter of Credit (LC) of upto Rs.600 Lakhs may be issued at sight and/or usance tenor of upto 

90 days 

1c. Bond & Guarantees of upto Rs.100 Lakhs for a tenor upto 1 year. 

1d. Preshipment Financing under Export orders of upto Rs.600 Lakhs with interest spread as specified by 

the bank at the time of drawdown over applicable Benchmark for a Rupee Facility. 

1e. Exports Bill dicsounting or Import Loan or Fianancial Guarantees/SBLC (Trade) of upto Rs.600 Lakhs 

(limit type : inner) with interest spread as specified by the bank at the time of drawdown over applicable 

Benchmark for a Rupee Facility. 

 

2. Exports Bill Discounting of Rs.400 Lakhs 

2a. Preshipment Financing under Export Orders upto Rs.400 Lakhs 

 

Above said limits are secured against exclusive charge on, IP Khasra No.69/(2)/(2) (7-11), 3/2 (7-11), 9(8-

0),12/1(1-11) situated atVillage Kundli, Narela Payao Maniyari Road, Tehsil - Ral, Distt Sonepat (Haryana) 

owned by director Mr. Ashish Aggarwal. Exclusive charge of Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) by way of 

Hypothecation on the present & future current assets & movable fixed assets of the company. 

 

Secured against personal Guarantee of Mr. Ashish Aggarwal and Mrs. Rekha Aggarwal. 

 

16 Trade Payables*      March 31, 2025     March 31, 2024  

  

 
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 0.22 

 
0.00 

  
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 680.87 

 
311.64 

                                  681.09    
                          

311.64 

  

 

*Balance of Trade Payables are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.     

  

* The list of parties covered under Micro, small & Medium enterprises has been taken as certified by the 
management and as represented. 
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Trade payable ageing schedule as on 
March 31, 2025  

        

  

 Particulars  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

  
Less than 1 Year 

1-2 
Years 

2-3 
years 

More 
than 

3 years 
Total 

   (i) MSME  
                                      

0.22  
                                      

-  
                                      

-  
                                      

-  
0.22 

   (ii) Others  670.16 8.06 2.65 - 680.87 

  
 (iii) Disputed dues - 
MSME  

-  -  -  -  -  

  
 (iv)Disputed dues - 
Others  

-  -  -  -  -  

  
                           

670.38  
 

8.06 
 

2.65 
 

- 
 

681.09 

        

  
Trade payable ageing schedule as on 
March 31, 2024  

        

  

 Particulars  

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

  

Less than 1 
Year 

1-2 
Years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

Total 

   (i) MSME  
                                      
-  

                                      
-  

                                      
-  

                                      
-  

                                      
-  

   (ii) Others  307.21  3.65  0.08  0.71  311.64  

  
 (iii) Disputed dues — 
MSME  

- - - - - 

   (iv)Disputed dues - Others  - - - - - 

  
                            

307.21  
                               

3.65  
                               

0.08  
                               

0.71  
                          

311.64  

        

              

17 
Other financial 
Liabilities   

  
 March 31, 2025  

  
 March 31, 2024  

  Expenses payable     65.67   71.40 

  Security Deposits     4.57   6.22 

  Payable for capital goods     20.56   20.56 

  Unpaid Equity Dividend     18.02   18.03 

        
                          

108.82  
   

116.21   

        
 
      

18 Other current liabilities   
  

 March 31, 2025  
  

 March 31, 2024  

  Statutory Dues Payable     4.77 
 

6.64 

  Advance Received From Customers*   64.60   7.72 

        
                             

69.38    
                          

14.36 

              

  
*Balance of advances outstanding are subject to confirmation from the respective 
parties     
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19 Provisions      March 31, 2025  
  

 March 31, 2024  

  Provision for employee benefits         

  Provision for gratuity     4.12   6.70 

                                       4.12    
                               

6.70  

 
20 

 
 
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)   

 
 

        March 31, 2025  

  
  

March 31, 2024 

  
Provision for Income Tax (net of 
advance tax)   0.23   1.86 

                                       0.23    
                             

1.86  

              

  
   21 Revenue from Operations  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024  

  Sale of Products 4,979.72 5117.23 

                               4,979.72                    5,117.23   

        

22 Other Income  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

  Interest Income 0.75 0.10 

  Export incentive 12.92 10.05 

  Other non operating income 1.49 0.00 

  Exchange rate Fluctuation 43.49 57.96 

                                 58.65  
                         

68.11 

        

23 Cost Of Material Consumed  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

  Raw Materials Consumed     

  Opening Stock                             825.84  
                            

669.21  

  Add : Purchases 4,843.09 3994.77 

                             5,668.93  
                         

4,663.97  

  Less: Closing Stock 1,842.51 825.84 

                           3,826.42                     3,838.13 

  Grand Total                        3,826.42  3,838.13 

  
  
     

24 Changes in Inventories of Stock in trade  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

  Opening Stock     

  Finished Goods                             258.61  

                            

210.78  

  work in progress                               65.42  
                              

52.09  

  Less : Closing Stock     

  Finished Goods 424.76 258.61 

  work in progress 73.69 65.42 

                               (174.42) 
                                                

(61.15) 
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25 Employee benefit expenses  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

  Salaries, wages, bonus and other benefits 438.85 486.46 

  Contribution to Provident and Other funds 7.04 9.60 

  Staff Welfare 2.20 0.84 

                               448.08  
                       

496.90 

  
  
     

26 Finance Cost  March 31, 2025   March 31, 2024  

  Interest paid to bank 71.83 16.74 

  Interest paid to others 16.44 2.78 

  Processing Fees 5.17 2.40 

                                 93.43  

                                                      

21.91 

 
27 

 
Other Expenses 

 
 March 31, 2025  

 
 March 31, 2024  

  Factory Electricity and Generator running 81.91 97.17 

  Gas storage - rent 8.16 8.16 

  Freight & Cartage Inward 45.09 40.75 

  
 
Repair & Maintenance     

        Machinery                                 3.34  
                                

3.31  

  Office                           2.07                        1.78  

        Factory maintenance                           2.47                        2.42  

  Insurance 5.93 4.31 

  Auditors' Remuneration 2.15 2.15 

  Bank charges 5.04 2.13 

  Bad Debts 0.63 0.00 

  Commission Paid 0.00 8.10 

  Exhibition Expense 16.03 11.85 

  Fees and Subscription 7.08 9.55 

  Legal and professional fee 13.77 27.71 

  Miscellaneous Expenses                               18.18                             9.87  

  Business promotion 0.43 25.64 

  Rent 42.95 42.95 

  Stock Exchange Listing Fee  3.37 3.46 

  Vehicle Running and Maintenance 10.24 1.66 

  Freight & Cartage Outward 51.66 49.44 

  Marketing Expenses 10.03 9.23 

        

  Total                             330.53                         361.66 

 

28 Employee Benefit Liability   

  
A. Defined Contribution Plans 
 

  

 Contributions are made to the Company's employee’s provident fund trust/regional provident fund, 

Employee State Insurance, Labour Welfare Fund and Employee Deposit Linked Insurance in accordance 

with the respective fund rules. The interest rate payable to the beneficiaries every year is being notified 
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by the Government. 

 

The amount of contribution made by the Company to employees provident fund trust/regional provident 

fund is Rs. 4.15 Lakhs (Rs. 6.62 Lakhs) and other funds is Rs. 2.89 Lakhs (Rs.2.98 Lakhs). 

  
B. Defined Benefit Plans 
 

  

 Post-employment benefit plans   

 Gratuity   

 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more 

of service receives gratuity on leaving the Company as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 

breakup of the liability and expense has been given as per the table below: 

 

 
 

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the profit and loss 

account and balance sheet. 

 

 
Changes in the present value of 
defined benefit obligation 
 

 

Rs. Lakhs 
 

 
Particulars As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 

Present value of obligation as at the 
beginning of the year                             38.88                              34.35  

 
Past Service cost     

 
Current service cost 3.07 5.65 

 

Interest cost 2.79 2.56 

 
Actuarial (gain) / loss -5.22 -3.04 

 
Benefits paid                               -21.13                                -0.64  

 

Present value of obligation as at 
the end of the year                             18.40  38.88 

 
  

  

 

Changes in the fair value of plan 
assets 
 

  

 
Particulars As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 

Fair value of plan assets as at the 
beginning of the year                                    -                                    -    

 
Expected return on plan assets                                    -                                    -    

 

Employer contribution / Cost pertain 
for service cost 

                                   5.22                                    0.64    

 

Employer contribution / Cost pertain 
for actuarial (gain) / loss 

                                   -                                    -    

 
Benefits paid                                    -5.22                                    -0.64    

 

Fair value of plan assets as at the 
end of the year                                    -                                    -    

 
  

  

 

Net asset / (liability) recognised 
in the balance sheet 
 

  

 
Particulars  As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end 
of the year (a)                                   -    
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Present value of obligation as at the 
end of the year (b) 18.40 38.88 

 

Net asset / (liability) recognized 
in the balance sheet (a - b)                            -18.40  -38.88 

 
  

  

 

Net expense recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss 
 

  

 
Particulars 

Year ended  
March 31, 2025 

Year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 
Past Service cost                                    -                                    -    

 
Current service cost 3.07  5.65  

 
Interest cost (net) 2.79  2.56  

 

Net Expense recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss                                5.86                              8.21  

 

 
Other comprehensive income 
 

  

 
Particulars 

Year ended  
March 31, 2025 

Year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in 
other comprehensive income -21.13 -3.04 

 

 

   Principal Assumptions 
 

  

 Particulars As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 Discounting rate 6.69  7.18  

 Future salary increase * 6.00  6.00  

 Retirement age (years) 60  60  

 Mortality table  IALM (2012-14)   IALM (2012-14) 

  
* The estimates of future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors. 

 
29 Income Taxes 

    

      

 

Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and 
applicable tax rate 
 

  

 Particulars 

2024-25 2023-24 

 
Rs. Lakhs Rate (%) Rs. Lakhs Rate (%) 

 
Profit before tax 375.59 

 

392.75 

 

 

Income tax using the Company's 
domestic tax rate 

94.54 
25.17% 

98.86 
25.17% 

 
Tax effect of 

    

 
Change in enacted tax rate - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 
Non deductible expenses  5.01 1.34% 1.96 0.50% 

 
Earlier year taxes 0.80 -0.20% (0.80) -0.20% 

 
Exempt income - Dividend - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 

Unabsorbed Capital Loss as per 
Income Tax Act, 1961 - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 
Others -7.76 -2.07% -0.95 -0.24% 

 

Income tax expense recognised 
in the statement of profit and 
loss 91.87 24.46% 99.07 25.22% 
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        Components of Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)  
 

      

 
Year Ended March 31, 2025 

   
Rs. Lakhs 

      

 

Particulars 
Opening 
Balance 

Recognised in 
Statement of 

Profit and 
Loss 

Recognized 
in/reclassifi
ed from OCI Closing Balance 

 

 

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax liabilities 

    

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 191.80 (5.07) - 186.74 

 
Others - - - - 

 

Fair value of Equity instruments - - - - 

 
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (a) 191.80 -5.07 - 186.74 

 

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax assets 

    

 
Employee Benefits 11.09 (0.06) (5.32) 5.71 

 
Others 2.84 - - 2.84 

 
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (b) 13.93 (0.60) (5.32) 8.56 

 
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit - - - - 

 
Net Deferred Tax Liability (a-b) 177.87 (5.01) 5.32 178.18 

      

 

 Year Ended March 31, 2024 
 

   

Rs. Lakhs 
 

 

Particulars 
Opening 
Balance 

Recognised in 
Statement of 

Profit and 
Loss 

Recognized 
in/reclassifi
ed from OCI Closing Balance  

 

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax liabilities 

    

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 193.09 (1.29) - 191.80 

 
Others - - - - 

 
Fair value of Equity instruments - - - - 

 
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (a) 193.09 -1.29 - 191.80 

 

 

Tax effect of items constituting 
deferred tax assets 

    

 
Employee Benefits 10.22 1.63 (0.76) 11.09 

 
Others 3.97 (1.13) - 2.84 

 
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (b) 14.19 0.50 (0.76) 13.93 

 
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit - - - - 

 
Net Deferred Tax Liability (a-b) 178.90 (1.79) 0.76 177.87 

 

30 Capital Management      

 The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting 

of long-term and short-term goals of the Company. 

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-

term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and 

long-term/short-term borrowings. 
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Capital of the Company (total equity) as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 3,328.27 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 

3,028.01.78 Lakhs). 

31 Disclosures on financial instruments      

 This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides 

additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. 

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 

measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of 

financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements. 

a) Financial assets and liabilities      

 The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each category of financial assets and 

liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024: 

 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities carried at amortized cost:    

      Rs. Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

 Carrying 
Value 

Fair 
Value 

Carrying 
Value 

Fair 
Value  

  Financial Assets  
  

  

  Trade Receivables    1038.61 1038.61 944.92 944.92 

  Cash and cash equivalents  33.80 33.80 16.15 126.24 

  Other bank balance  20.17 20.17 20.03 20.03 

  Other Financial Assets  1.19 1.19 1.43 1.43 

  Loans - Non-Current 29.82 29.82 24.51 24.51 

   1,123.59 1,123.59 1,007.04 1,007.04 

  Financial Liabilities    
  

  Trade payables  681.09 681.09 311.64 311.64 

  Other financial liabilities - Current  108.82 108.82 116.21 116.21 

  Borrowings  947.601 947.601 547.24 547.24 

   737.50 737.50 975.09 975.09 

 

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 

recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below: 

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are 

measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This 

category consists of quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debt instruments and mutual fund investments.  

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and 

liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e; as prices) or indirectly (i.e; derived from prices). 

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial 

assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that 

are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are 

they based on available market data. 

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 

March 31, 2024. 
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The following table provides an analysis of fair value of financial instruments that are not measured at fair 

value on recurring basis, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 categories. 

Fair Value Measurement as at March 31, 2025 for financial assets / liabilities not measured at 

fair value: 

     Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars Fair Value 

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

 Loans (Long term financial asset)  29.82 - - 29.82 

 Borrowings (Long term financial 

liabilities)  - - - - 

 

Fair Value Measurement as at March 31, 2024 for financial assets / liabilities not measured at 

fair value: 

     Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars Fair Value 

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

 Loans (Long term financial asset)  24.51 - - 24.51 

 Borrowings (Long term financial 
liabilities)  - - - - 

 

The short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost which is approximately equal to 

their fair value. 

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there 

are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the 

fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could 

have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial 

instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at 

each year end. 

b) Financial risk management      

 In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to liquidity and credit risk, which may 

impact the fair value of its financial instruments. 

 The Company has a risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets and 

liabilities such as credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the board of directors. 

 i) Foreign Currency Risk 
     

 The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in 

which sales and purchases are denominated and the functional currency of the Company. The functional 

currency is INR. The Currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US Dollor (USD) 

and EURO. 

In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company's policy is to 

ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. The Company do not hedge its exposure 
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through any instrument. 

 Exposure to currency risk      

 The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional 

amounts) as reported to the management is as follows: 

 

Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2025 
 

 

 Against exposure in (Rs. In 

Lakhs)  

 Particulars USD EURO Total 

 Trade Receivables 
  

532.20 - 532.20 

 Bank balances 
  

25.54 0.31 25.85 

 Trade payables 
  

234.49 - 234.49 

 Gross Exposure to foreign currency risk 
  

792.22 0.31 792.53 

       

  
Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2024 
 

 
 Against exposure in (Rs. In 

Lakhs)  

 Particulars  USD   EURO   Total  

 Trade Receivables     553.93 - 553.93 

 Bank balances     3.72 8.18 11.89 

 Trade payables     31.49 - 31.49 

 Gross Exposure to foreign currency risk     589.13 8.18 597.31 

 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
     

A reasonable possible strengthening (weakning) of the US Dollar, Sterling against INR at 31 st March would 

have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected 

equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain 

constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. 

  
 As at March 31, 2025   As at March 31, 2024  

  1% increase  1% decrease  1% increase  1% decrease  

USD 
 

                      7.92                       7.92                       5.89                     (5.89) 

EURO 
 

                      0.00                     (0.00)                       0.08                     (0.08) 
 

 

ii) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 

contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of  

creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. 

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of investments classified as fai r 

value through profit or loss, trade receivables, loans and advances and derivative financial instruments. None of the 

financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of exposure to credit risks. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 

as at March 31, 2025 was Rs. 1,123.59.04 Lakhs (Rs. 1,007.04 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024) being the total of the 

carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks and other financial assets excluding equity 

investments. 
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None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding trade 

receivables and other receivables, and other loans or receivables that are neither impaired nor past due, there were no 

indications as at March 31, 2025, that defaults in payment obligations will occur. 

iii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk 

management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 

Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and liquid and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which car ry 

no/low mark to market risks. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including 

estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2025: 

 

    Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars 
Due in 1st  

Year 
Due in 2nd Year 

Due in 3rd to 5th 
Year 

Due after 5th 
Year 

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

Trade Payables 681.09                           -                            -                        -    681.09 

Other financial liabilities 108.82                           -                            -                        -    108.82 

Borrowings 947.60                           -                            -                        -    947.60 

Total 1,737.50                           -                            -                        -    1,737.50 

      

      

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including 
estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2024: 

 

    Rs. Lakhs 

Particulars 
Due in 1st  

Year 
Due in 2nd Year 

Due in 3rd to 5th 
Year 

Due after 5th  
Year 

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

Trade Payables           311.64                            -                            -                        -              311.64  

Other financial liabilities           116.21                            -                            -                        -              116.21  

Borrowings           547.24                            -                            -                        -              547.24  

Total         975.09                            -                            -                        -              975.09  
 

 

32. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments       

(i) Bond executed in favour of Dy. Commissioner Central Excise, for clearance of imported goods for Rs.300 lakhs 

(previous year Rs.300 lakhs). 

(ii) Export obligation against EPCG Licence No.0531000730 dated 12.01.2021 for Rs.91.48 Lakhs. The export 

obligation on the same was required to be met within a period of 6 years from the date of utilization of licence. To the 

extent of the amount of total duty saved as reduced by export obligation met, the company shall be contingently 

liable.  

(iii) Export obligation against EPCG Licence No.0531004701 dated 14.09.2021 for Rs.422.93 Lakhs. The export 

obligation on the same was required to be met within a period of 6 years from the date of utilization of licence. To the 

extent of the amount of total duty saved as reduced by export obligation met, the company shall be contingently 

liable.  
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33. Transactions with related parties 
      

List of related parties to whom transactions takes place during the year 
    

Sr. 
No. Name of the related party  Relation    

    
1.  Ashish Aggarwal  Key Managerial Personnel    

    
2.  Hemant Mangla  Director    

    
3.  Saras Kumar  Director    

    
4.  Rekha Aggarwal  Key Managerial Personnel    

    
5.  Sandeep Yadav  Key Managerial Personnel    

    
6.  Raghav Aggarwal Director    

    

7.  Jagan Automotives Pvt Ltd 
Enterprises under Common   
Control    

    
8.  Shweta Nathani Director    

    
9.  Anuradha Malik Key Managerial Personnel    

    
10.  Pratyush Kumar Key Managerial Personnel    

    

          
 (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. Name of the relative Relation 

Nature of 
transactions 2024-25 2023-24 

1 Ashish Aggarwal Key Managerial Personnel 
Director 
Remuneration 32.7 32.7 

   

Rent 39.95 39.95 

   

Purchase of 
Goods 68.05 0.00 

   

Loan from 
Director 1.00 184.00 

   

Interest on Loan 4.01 1.76 

2 Saras Kumar Director Sitting Fees 0.14 0.20 

3 Rekha Aggarwal Key Managerial Personnel Salary 7.20 6.86 

   

Loan from 
Director 0.00 42.00 

   

Interest on Loan 0.90 0.40 

4 Sandeep Yadav Key Managerial Personnel 

Salary (including 

bonus) 0.00 0.32 

5 Jagan Automotives Pvt Ltd 
Enterprises under Common 
Control 

Purchase of 
Goods 28.38 66.91 

   

Sale of Goods 279.74 59.78 

6 Hemant Mangla Director Sitting Fees 0.14 0.20 

7 Raghav Aggarwal Director Sitting Fees 0.02 0.08 

   Salary 12  

8 Shweta Nathani Director Sitting Fees 0.14 0.20 
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9 Anuradha Malik Key Managerial Personnel 
Salary (including 
bonus) 0.00 0.99 

10 Pratyush Kumar Key Managerial Personnel 
Salary (including 
bonus) 7.28 3.55 

 

Details of Loan taken during the year 

   

Sr. 
No. Name of the relative Opening balance 

Taken during 
the year 

Repaid 
during the 

year 
Closing 
balance 

      1 Ashish Aggarwal 186.25 4.61 190.86 - 

  - (277.81) (91.56) (186.25) 

2 Rekha Aggarwal 42.40 0.81 43.21 - 

  
- 42.40 - 42.40 

 
(Figures in bracket denotes previous year figures)       
Details of Balances outstanding 
        

No. Name of the relative  Relation   Cr/Dr   2024-25   2023-24  

        
(Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

(Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

            

1 Ashish Aggarwal Key Managerial Personnel Cr 0.32 186.25 

            

2 Saras Kumar Director Cr 0.018 0.18 

            

3 Rekha Aggarwal Key Managerial Personnel Cr 0.00 43.86 

            

4 Raghav Aggarwal  Director  Cr 0.92 0.07 

            

5 
Jagan Automotives Pvt 
Ltd 

Enterprises under Common 
Control Dr 181.41 151.55 

            

6 Hemant Mangla  Director   Cr  0.18 0.18 

            

7 Shweta Nathani  Director   Cr  0.018 0.18 

            

8 Pratyush Kumar  Director   Cr  0.60 0.56 

            
34. Auditor Remuneration 

     2024-25   2023-24  

        
 (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

(Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

  As Audit Fee     1.50  1.50  

  As Tax Audit Fee     0.65  0.65  

            
35. The company has entered into a lease deed for short term lease period for factory premises against which rent of 

Rs.39.95 lakhs has been provided for during the current year. 

36. The balances of receivable and payable as well as unilateral written off/back of the amounts due/payable are 

subject to third party confirmations, including payments adjusted through group companies.  
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37. The admissibility of Input Credits and Concessional/rebate against forms is subject to assessment by the sales tax 

department and goods and services tax department. GST Liabilities & GST input tax credits availment  & admissibility 

are subject to audit/assessment under Goods & Services Tax Act. 

 

 
            

38. Ratio Analysis and its Elements  
  

        

Sr. 
No. 

 Ratio   Numerator   Denominator   March 31, 
2025  

 March 31, 
2024  

 % 
Change  

 Reason for 
variance 

above 25%  

a) Current 
Ratio  Current Assets  Current Liabilities  

                    
2.00  

                    
2.44 -17.95% 

Not   
Applicable  

b) Debt equity 
Ratio  

Total Debt  Total Equity                      
0.28  

                    
0.18 57.58% 

Not 
Applicable  

c) Debt service 

coverage 
Ratio  

Profit after 

tax+Finance 
costs+ 
Depreciation 
and 
amortization 
expenses + 
Loss/(Gain) on 
sale of 
Property Plant 
& Equipment + 
Exceptional 
items  

Finance Costs + lease 

payments+Scheduled 
principal repayments 
of long term 
borrowings  

                  

5.52  

                  

20.57 

 

-73.15% 

Due to 

increase in 
profit & 
decrease in 
finance cost.  

d) Return on 
Equity Ratio  

Net profit after 
tax   

Average Shareholders’ 
Equity  

                    
0.09  

                    
0.10  

 
-12.09% 

Not 
Applicable  

e) Inventory 
Turnover 

Ratio  

Cost of 
material 

consumed   Average Inventory  

                    

2.09  

                    

3.63 -42.33% 

Not 
Applicable  

f) Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover 
Ratio  Total Sales  

Average Trade 
Receivables  

                    
5.02  

                    
5.48 -8.46% 

Not 
Applicable  

g) Trade 
payables 
Turnover 
Ratio  

Total 
purchases  

Average Trade 
Payables  

                  
9.76  

                  
16.92 

 
-39.36% 

Due to better 
payment 
management   

f) Net working 
capital 
Turnover 
Ratio  

 Sales   Net Working capital = 
current assets - 
current liabilities  

                    
2.75  

                    
3.57 

-22.91% Not 
Applicable  

i) Net Profit 
Ratio  

Net profit after 
tax   Net Sales  

                    
0.06  

                    
0.06  -0.72% 

Not 
Applicable  

j) Return on 
Capital 
Employed  

Earnings 
before interest 
and taxes 
(EBIT)   

Average Capital 
Employed  

                    
0.11  

                    
0.11  

-4.67% Not 
Applicable  

k) Return on 
Investment  

Income from 
Investments  

Time weighted 
average Investments 

 NA   NA   NA  Not 
Applicable  
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39. Other Statutory Information 

 

      

    
(i) The company does not have any Immovable property, whose title Deed is not held in the name of the 

company.     

(ii) No revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment (Including ROU) & Intangible assets has been carried out 

during  the year   

(iii) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and 

the related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are  

(a) Repayable on demand; or  

(b). without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 

(iv) The Company has no intangible asset under development and accordingly its ageing is not required at 

yearend.      

(v) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 

against the Company for holding any Benami property.  

(vi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of 

Companies beyond the statutory period.  

(vii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the respective 

financial years / period.  

(viii) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores, in aggregate, during the 

year, from Standard Chartered banks on the basis of security of current assets, however as represented by 

the management no quarterly returns or statements were filed by the company with bank.  

(ix) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

 

(x) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:  

 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

 

(xi) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).  

(xii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 
 

 

The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent 

Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act. 
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(xiii) The Company has no identified Promoters as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013. 
 

  
 

40. Previous year figures have been re grouped / recasted/ re arranged wherever necessary to make them 

comparable.  

 

For KASG & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FIRN: 002228C  

  

Sd/- 

Vipin Goel  

Partner 

Membership Number: 512694  

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30.05.2025   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ashish Aggarwal  

Managing Director  

DIN: 01837337  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rekha Aggarwal  

Director & CFO  

DIN: 07887630  

 

Sd/- 

Pratyus Kumar 

Company Secretary 

M. No.: ACS 40171  
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Form MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 (3) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the Member:  ________________________________________________________________ 

Registered Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Email ID:   ________________________________________________________________ 

Regd. Folio No/ DP ID/Client ID: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

I/We being the member(s) of JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED holding ________________ shares hereby appoint: - 

Particulars Proxy 1 Proxy 2 

Name   

Address   

Email   

Signature  

 

 

   

as my/our proxy to attend the vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33rd Annual General 

Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, the 29th Day of September 2025, at 10:00 A.M. at the 

Registered Office of the Company at Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, Distt.-Sonepat, 131028 Haryana or any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:- 

Resolution 

No. 

Type of Business Vote (optional)* 

For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

prepared as per Indian Accounting Standard for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 

the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

  

2.  To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Rekha Aggarwal (DIN: 07887630), who retires 

by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

  

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3.  To appoint M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years. 

  

4.  Appointment of Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) as an Independent Director in 

terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

  

 

Signed this …………………day of ……………………….. 2025 

Signature of shareholder(s) ………………………………… Signature of proxy holder(s) ……………………………… 

Notes: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave ‘for’ or ‘against’ column blank against any or all of the resolutions, 

your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate. 

 

Rupee one 
Revenue  
Stamp is to 
be affixed 
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Form No. MGT-12 

Polling Paper 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration Rules, 2014] 

 

JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED 

CIN: L31501HR1993PLC033993 

Regd. Office: Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, Distt. Sonepat 131028 Haryana 

BALLOT PAPER 

SI.NO Particulars Details 

1. Name of the First Named Shareholders (In 

Block Letter) 

 

2. Postal Address  

 

3. Registered folio No./Client ID No.  

4. Class of Share Equity 

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/Special resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent 

or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

Sl.No Item No. of shares 

held by me 

I assent to 

the 

resolution 

I dissent 

from the 

resolution 

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company prepared as per Indian 

Accounting Standard for the year ended 31st March, 

2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

   

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Rekha Aggarwal 

(DIN: 07887630), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. To appoint M/s Mehak Gupta & Associates, Practicing 

Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company for a period of 5 years. 

   

4. Appointment of Mr. Ashwani Mangla (DIN: 11279660) as an 

Independent Director in terms of Section 149 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

   

 

 

Place: 

Date:          
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JAGAN LAMPS LIMITED 

CIN: L31501HR1993PLC033993 

Regd. Office: Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, Distt. Sonepat 131028 Haryana 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Regd. Folio No. /DP ID/Client ID No. ___________________________ 

 

Name & Address of first/Sole Shareholder  ___________________________ 

 

No. of Share held    ___________________________ 

 

I, hereby record my presence at the 33rd Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, the 29th Day of 

September 2025, at 10:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Narela Piao Manihari Road, Kundli, 

Distt.-Sonepat, 131028, Haryana.  

 

 

 __________________________  

Signature of Member/Proxy 

 

Note:  

1. Only member/proxy can attend the meeting. No minor would be allowed at the meeting. 

2. Member/proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and handover at 

the entrance duly filled in and signed. 

 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

 

EVSN (Electronic Voting 

Sequence Number) 

PAN / SEQ. NO USER ID PASSWORD 

 

 

   

 

Please refer to Notice for instructions on remote E-Voting. 

 

 

 


